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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Port of Edmonds
January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2017

Board of Commissioners
Port of Edmonds
Edmonds, Washington
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Port of Edmonds, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Port’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated December 18, 2018.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
In planning and performing our audits of the financial statements, we considered the Port’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s
internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Port's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Port’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of the Port’s compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Port’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Port’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. However,
this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It also serves to
disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess government
operations.

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

December 18, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Port of Edmonds
January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2017

Board of Commissioners
Port of Edmonds
Edmonds, Washington

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Port of Edmonds, as of and for the
years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Port’s basic financial statements as listed on page 9.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Port’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
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audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Port of Edmonds, as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the changes
in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information listed on page 9
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 18, 2018 on our consideration of the Port’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Port’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

December 18, 2018
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FINANCIAL SECTION
Port of Edmonds
January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2017

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis – 2017 and 2016

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Net Position – 2017 and 2016
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – 2017 and 2016
Statement of Cash Flows – 2017 and 2016
Notes to Financial Statements – 2017 and 2016

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Other Postemployment Benefits Schedule of Funding Progress – 2017 and 2016
Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability – PERS 1, PERS 2/3 – 2017
and 2016
Schedule of Employer Contributions – PERS 1, PERS 2/3 – 2017 and 2016
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7KHGLVFXVVLRQDQGDQDO\VLVRIWKH3RUWRI(GPRQGV¶ WKH3RUW¶V ILQDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFHSURYLGHV
DQRYHUYLHZRIWKH3RUW¶VILQDQFLDODFWLYLWLHVIRUWKHILVFDO\HDUHQGHG'HFHPEHU7KLV
GLVFXVVLRQDQGDQDO\VLVLVGHVLJQHGWRDVVLVWWKHUHDGHULQIRFXVLQJRQWKHVLJQLILFDQWILQDQFLDO
LVVXHVDQGDFWLYLWLHVRIWKH3RUWDQGWRLGHQWLI\DQ\VLJQLILFDQWFKDQJHVLQILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQ
3OHDVHUHDGLWLQFRQMXQFWLRQZLWKWKH3RUW¶VILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

7KH3RUWRI(GPRQGVLVD6SHFLDO3XUSRVH0XQLFLSDO*RYHUQPHQW7KH3RUWZDVFUHDWHGLQ
E\DYRWHRIWKHFLWL]HQVRIWKH3RUWGLVWULFW7KHGLVWULFWHQFRPSDVVHVSRUWLRQVRIWKH&LW\RI
(GPRQGVDQGDOORIWKH7RZQRI:RRGZD\3RUWVH[LVWWREXLOGLQIUDVWUXFWXUHDQGSURPRWH
HFRQRPLFGHYHORSPHQWDQGWRXULVPZLWKLQWKHLUGLVWULFWV3RUWVDUHRIWHQWKRXJKQRWDOZD\V
LQYROYHGLQWUDQVSRUWDWLRQDFWLYLWLHV

7KH3RUWRI(GPRQGVRSHUDWHVDPDULQDRQ3XJHW6RXQGIRUUHFUHDWLRQDOERDWLQJ7KHPDULQD
FRQVLVWVRIDQLQZDWHUIDFLOLW\ZLWKDSSUR[LPDWHO\VOLSVDGU\VWDFNVWRUDJHIDFLOLW\ZLWK
DSSUR[LPDWHO\VSDFHVWZRSXEOLFERDWODXQFKHVDERDW\DUGDIXHOGRFNJXHVWPRRUDJHDQG
SDUNLQJIDFLOLWLHV,QDGGLWLRQWRWKH3RUW¶VPDULQDRSHUDWLRQVWKH3RUWUHQWVLWVODQGWR
FRPPHUFLDOXVHUVZKRWKHQEXLOGVXLWDEOHIDFLOLWLHVRQWKHODQG7KH3RUWDOVRRZQVDQGPDQDJHV
HLJKWEXLOGLQJVUHQWLQJSRUWLRQVRIWKRVHEXLOGLQJVWRDSSUR[LPDWHO\WHQDQWV0DMRUWHQDQWV
LQFOXGHDKRWHODQDWKOHWLFFOXEWKUHHUHVWDXUDQWVD\DFKWEURNHUUHSDLUIDFLOLW\DQGD\DFKWFOXE

)LYHHOHFWHG3RUW&RPPLVVLRQHUVDGPLQLVWHUWKH3RUW,QDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHODZVRI
:DVKLQJWRQWKH&RPPLVVLRQHUVKDYHDSSRLQWHGDQ([HFXWLYH'LUHFWRUWRPDQDJH3RUW
RSHUDWLRQV

86,1*7+($118$/5(3257

*RYHUQPHQWDODFFRXQWLQJIDOOVXQGHUWKHFRQWURORIWKH*RYHUQPHQWDO$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV
%RDUG *$6% $OORIWKHIXQFWLRQVRIWKH3RUWDUHFRQVLGHUHGLQWKHQXPEHUVVKRZQRQWKH
IROORZLQJSDJHVLQFOXGLQJWKHFRVWRIJHQHUDOJRYHUQPHQWRIWKH3RUW'LVWULFW6LQFHWKH3RUWLVD
6SHFLDO3XUSRVHJRYHUQPHQWDOORILWVDVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVDUHVKRZQLQLWV3URSULHWDU\)XQG
7KH3RUWLQFXUVDVXEVWDQWLDODPRXQWRIJRYHUQPHQWDODFWLYLW\H[SHQVHVXFKDV3RUWPDQDJHPHQW
DQGDGPLQLVWUDWLRQSXEOLFIDFLOLW\PDLQWHQDQFHDQGSXEOLFPHHWLQJH[SHQVHV$OORIWKHVH
H[SHQVHVRIWKH3RUWDUHUHSRUWHGLQWKH3URSULHWDU\)XQG7KH³RQHIXQG´PRGHOLVXVHGLQ
FRPSOLDQFHZLWKWKHUXOHVRI*$6%ZKLFKVWDWHWKDWVHSDUDWHO\LVVXHGGHEWDQGVHSDUDWHO\
LVVXHGFODVVLILHGDVVHWVDUHQHHGHGLQRUGHUIRUDVHSDUDWHIXQGWRH[LVW0RVWRIWKHJRYHUQPHQWDO
FRVWVDUHFRQWDLQHGLQWKH*HQHUDODQG$GPLQLVWUDWLYHFRVWFHQWHUVVKRZQRQWKH3RUW¶VILQDQFLDO
UHSRUWV6LQFHWKH3RUWLVFRPSULVHGRIDVLQJOHHQWHUSULVHIXQGQRIXQGOHYHOILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
DUHVKRZQ

3RUWVSHUIRUPWKHLUDFFRXQWLQJDQGILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJRIWKHLUDFWLYLWLHVYHU\PXFKOLNHD
EXVLQHVV7KH3RUWSUHSDUHVDQLQFRPHVWDWHPHQWPDQDJHVRSHUDWLRQVDQGSODQVIRUFDSLWDO
LQYHVWPHQWV3RUWVFROOHFWUHYHQXHVIURPVHUYLFHVSHUIRUPHGIRUFXVWRPHUVDQGSD\IRUH[SHQVHV
UHODWHGWRWKRVHVHUYLFHV+RZHYHUSRUWVDUHPXQLFLSDOJRYHUQPHQWV$VVXFKSRUWVPD\FROOHFW
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SURSHUW\WD[UHYHQXHVIURPWKHSURSHUW\RZQHUVZLWKLQWKH3RUWGLVWULFW7KHVHWD[UHYHQXHVPD\
JRWRVXSSRUWWKHFDSLWDOLQYHVWPHQWVPDGHE\WKH3RUW2IWHQSRUWVZLOOXVHWD[UHYHQXHVWRSD\
IRUGHEWLQFXUUHGWRFRQVWUXFWIDFLOLWLHVWKDWDUHXVHGWRVXSSRUWSRUWIXQFWLRQV6RPHWLPHVSRUWV
PD\XVHDSRUWLRQRIWKHLUWD[UHYHQXHWRSD\IRURSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHV7KH3RUWRI(GPRQGVXVHV
LWVWD[UHYHQXHWRSD\IRU&RPPLVVLRQFRVWVWRVXSSOHPHQWWKHFRVWRISXEOLFDPHQLWLHVDQGWR
SURPRWHHFRQRPLFGHYHORSPHQWDQGWRXULVP

7KHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVSURYLGHDEURDGYLHZRIWKH3RUW¶VRSHUDWLRQVLQDPDQQHUVLPLODUWRD
SULYDWHVHFWRUEXVLQHVV7KHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVWDNHLQWRDFFRXQWDOOUHYHQXHVDQGH[SHQVHV
FRQQHFWHGZLWKWKHILVFDO\HDUHYHQLIFDVKLQYROYHGKDVQRWEHHQUHFHLYHGRUSDLG

7KH6WDWHPHQWRI1HW3RVLWLRQ DOVRNQRZQDVWKH%DODQFH6KHHW SUHVHQWVDOORIWKH3RUW¶VDVVHWV
DQGOLDELOLWLHVZLWKWKHGLIIHUHQFHEHWZHHQWKHWZRUHSRUWHGDVQHWSRVLWLRQ2YHUWLPHLQFUHDVHV
DQGGHFUHDVHVLQWKH3RUW¶VQHWSRVLWLRQPD\VHUYHDVDXVHIXOLQGLFDWRURIZKHWKHUWKHILQDQFLDO
SRVLWLRQRIWKH3RUWLVLPSURYLQJRUGHWHULRUDWLQJ

7KH6WDWHPHQWRI5HYHQXHV([SHQVHVDQG&KDQJHVLQ)XQG1HW3RVLWLRQSUHVHQWVLQIRUPDWLRQ
VKRZLQJKRZWKH3RUW¶VQHWSRVLWLRQFKDQJHGGXULQJWKH\HDU5HYHQXHVOHVVH[SHQVHVZKHQ
FRPELQHGZLWKRWKHUQRQRSHUDWLQJLWHPVVXFKDVLQYHVWPHQWLQFRPHWD[UHFHLSWVDQGLQWHUHVW
H[SHQVHUHVXOWVLQDQHWLQFUHDVHRUGHFUHDVHLQWKH3RUW¶VQHWSRVLWLRQIRUWKH\HDU

7KH6WDWHPHQWRI&DVK)ORZVUHSRUWVFDVKUHFHLSWVFDVKSD\PHQWVDQGQHWFKDQJHVLQFDVK
UHVXOWLQJIURPRSHUDWLRQVDQGLQYHVWLQJDQGILQDQFLQJDFWLYLWLHV$UHFRQFLOLDWLRQRIWKHFDVK
SURYLGHGE\RSHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHVWRWKH3RUW¶VRSHUDWLQJLQFRPHDVUHIOHFWHGRQWKH6WDWHPHQWRI
5HYHQXHV([SHQVHVDQG&KDQJHVLQ)XQG1HW3RVLWLRQLVDOVRLQFOXGHG

7KHQRWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVSURYLGHDGGLWLRQDOLQIRUPDWLRQWKDWPD\QRWEHUHDGLO\
DSSDUHQWIURPWKHDFWXDOILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV7KHQRWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVFDQEHIRXQG
LPPHGLDWHO\IROORZLQJWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

2QHRIWKHTXHVWLRQVWREHDQVZHUHGE\WKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVZRXOGEH³,VWKH3RUWDVDZKROH
EHWWHURIIRUZRUVHRIIDVDUHVXOWRIWKLV\HDU¶VDFWLYLWLHV"´&KDQJHVLQQHWSRVLWLRQDQGFDVK
IORZVDUHWZRZD\VRIPHDVXULQJWKHILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQRIWKH3RUW,QFUHDVHVLQ1HW3RVLWLRQDVD
UHVXOWRIWKH\HDU¶VRSHUDWLRQVLQGLFDWHDQLPSURYHGILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQ,QWKH3RUW¶V1HW
3RVLWLRQLQFUHDVHGE\RUZKLFKVKRZVWKDWWKH3RUWRI(GPRQGVSHUIRUPHGEHWWHU
LQWKDQLQ&DVKIORZVVKRZLIWKH3RUWLVVSHQGLQJPRUHPRQH\WKDQLWUHFHLYHG,Q
WKH3RUWRI(GPRQGVVSHQWPRUHWKDQLWUHFHLYHGZKLOHPDNLQJLQ
ERQGSULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVWSD\PHQWVWKHUHE\UHGXFLQJGHEW7RWDOFDVKDQGLQYHVWPHQWV
LQFUHDVHGE\IURPWR2YHUDOOWKH3RUWLVLQDEHWWHUILQDQFLDOSRVLWLRQWKDQ
LWZDVLQ

),1$1&,$/+,*+/,*+76

7KH3RUW¶VPDULQDRSHUDWLRQVUHYHQXHVZHUHDQLQFUHDVHRIRU
RYHUWKDQWKHSUHYLRXV\HDU,QFUHDVHVDUHGXHWRLQFUHDVHVLQRFFXSDQF\UDWHVDQGPDULQD
DFWLYLW\SURSHUW\OHDVHUHQWDORSHUDWLRQVUHYHQXHVZHUHDQLQFUHDVHRI
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RUJUHDWHUWKDQWKHSUHYLRXV\HDU7KLVLVSDUWLDOO\GXHWRDQLQFUHDVHLQOHDVHUDWHV
DQGSDUWLDOO\GXHWRDQLQFUHDVHLQRFFXSDQF\$VRI'HFHPEHUWKH3RUW¶V+DUERU
6TXDUHEXVLQHVVSDUNZDVRFFXSLHG7KH3RUW¶VQRQRSHUDWLQJUHYHQXHVZHUH
DQLQFUHDVHRIRUJUHDWHUWKDQWKHSUHYLRXV\HDU

7KH3RUW¶VRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHVZHUHDQLQFUHDVHRIRUJUHDWHUWKDQ
WKHSUHYLRXV\HDU¶VRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHOHYHOV7KH3RUW¶VQRQRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHVZHUH
DGHFUHDVHRIIURPWKHSUHYLRXV\HDU¶VQRQRSHUDWLQJH[SHQVHOHYHOV

7KH3RUW¶VRSHUDWLQJLQFRPHZDVLQDVFRPSDUHGWRLQ

,QWKH3RUW¶VQHWSRVLWLRQLQFUHDVHGE\

7KH3RUW¶VDVVHWVH[FHHGHGLWVOLDELOLWLHVE\ QHWSRVLWLRQ DVRI'HFHPEHU

),1$1&,$/$1$/<6,6±67$7(0(172)1(7326,7,21

6XPPDU\RI6WDWHPHQWRI1HW3RVLWLRQ
,QFUHDVH
'HFUHDVH

&KDQJH

&XUUHQW$VVHWV

 





 



,QYHVWPHQWV

 





1RQFXUUHQW5HVWULFWHG$VVHWV

 





&DSLWDO$VVHWV1HW

 

 



7RWDO$VVHWV

 

 



'HIHUUHG2XWIORZVRI5HVRXUFHV

 

 



7RWDO$VVHWVDQG'HIHUUHG2XWIORZVRI5HVRXUFHV

 

 



&XUUHQW/LDELOLWLHV

 





1RQFXUUHQW/LDELOLWLHV

 

 



7RWDO/LDELOLWLHV

 

 



'HIHUUHG,QIORZVRI5HVRXUFHV

 





1HWLQYHVWPHQWLQFDSLWDODVVHWV

 

 



8QUHVWULFWHG

 





7RWDO1HW3RVLWLRQ

 





7RWDO/LDELOLWLHV'HIHUUHG,QIORZVRI5HYHQXHVDQG
1HW3RVLWLRQ
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7KLVGLVFXVVLRQRIWKH3RUW¶VILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFOXGHVDQDQDO\VLVRIPDMRUFKDQJHVLQWKH
DVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVIRUDVZHOODVUHYLHZLQJFKDQJHVLQUHYHQXHVDQGH[SHQVHVUHIOHFWHGLQ
WKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV7KH3RUW¶V1HW3RVLWLRQLQFUHDVHGE\RULQ
RIWKH3RUW¶V1HW3RVLWLRQUHIOHFWVWKH3RUW¶VQHWLQYHVWPHQWLQFDSLWDODVVHWV

&$3,7$/$66(76




&DSLWDO$VVHWV
/DQG
&RQVWUXFWLRQLQSURJUHVV
%XLOGLQJV
0DFKLQHU\DQGHTXLSPHQW
0DULQDDQGRWKHULPSURYHPHQWV



















7KH3RUWKDVERRNHGWKHDFTXLVLWLRQRIDOODVVHWVDWKLVWRULFDOFRVWVRQLWV6WDWHPHQWRI1HW
3RVLWLRQ*$6%UHTXLUHVWKH3RUWWRFDSLWDOL]HDQGGHSUHFLDWHDOORIWKHDVVHWVRZQHGRU
FRQWUROOHGE\WKH3RUWZKLFKLVGRQHRQWKHVHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV,QWKH3RUWSXUFKDVHG
RUFRQVWUXFWHGDQGFDSLWDOL]HGQHZIXHOGRFNVDOHVV\VWHPVDWUDYHOLIWRYHUKDXOLQFOXGLQJDQHZ
PRWRUWHQDQWLPSURYHPHQWVDWWKH+DUERU6TXDUHEXVLQHVVSDUNDQGDQHZZRUNWUXFN

7KH3RUW¶VFDSLWDODVVHWVDUHFODVVLILHGLQWRWKHIROORZLQJFDWHJRULHVODQGFRQVWUXFWLRQLQ
SURJUHVVEXLOGLQJVPDULQDDQGRWKHULPSURYHPHQWVDQGPDFKLQHU\DQGHTXLSPHQW0DULQDDQG
RWKHULPSURYHPHQWVLQFOXGHDVVHWVVXFKDVGRFNVEUHDNZDWHUVWKHGU\VWDFNIDFLOLW\URDGVDQG
ODQGVFDSLQJ6HH1RWHCapital Assets and DepreciationLQWKH1RWHVWRWKH)LQDQFLDO
6WDWHPHQWVIRUPRUHLQIRUPDWLRQ

7KH3RUWPDLQWDLQHGFDSLWDODVVHWVRIDVRI'HFHPEHU7KHERRNYDOXHRI
WKHFDSLWDODVVHWVGHFUHDVHGE\LQDVDUHVXOWRILQYHVWPHQWVLQFDSLWDODVVHWV
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RIIVHWE\GHSUHFLDWLRQFKDUJHGDJDLQVWUHYHQXHLQWKH\HDU:KHQWKH3RUWLQYHVWVPRUHWKDQ
GHSUHFLDWLRQLQQHZFDSLWDODVVHWVLQD\HDUWKHERRNYDOXHRILWVDVVHWEDVHLQFUHDVHV

'(%7


%RQG3ULQFLSDO5HPDLQLQJ

%RQG'HEW2XWVWDQGLQJ











/7*2DQG
5HIXQGLQJ%RQGV
6SHFLDO5HYHQXH
5HIXQGLQJ%RQGV
6SHFLDO5HYHQXH
5HIXQGLQJ%RQGV




<HDU





%RQG
/7*2DQG5HIXQGLQJ%RQGV
6SHFLDO5HYHQXH5HIXQGLQJ%RQGV
6SHFLDO5HYHQXH5HIXQGLQJ%RQGV



 
 
  

7KH3RUW¶VFXUUHQWOLDELOLWLHVDVRI'HFHPEHUDUHGHEWVWKDWWKH3RUWZLOOUHSD\LQ
7KHWRWDOFXUUHQWOLDELOLWLHVLQFUHDVHGE\LQ&XUUHQWOLDELOLWLHVLQFOXGHSD\PHQWV
IRUH[SHQVHVDOUHDG\LQFXUUHGDFFUXHGLQWHUHVWRQWKH3RUW¶VERQGVFXVWRPHUGHSRVLWVDQGWKH
SULQFLSDODPRXQWRIWKHERQGSD\PHQWVGXHLQ

7KH3RUW¶VORQJWHUPOLDELOLWLHVGHFUHDVHGE\LQDVWKH3RUWPDGHSULQFLSDO
SD\PHQWVRQLWVERQGV7KH3RUW¶V*HQHUDO2EOLJDWLRQ%RQGVPDWXUHGRQ-XQHZLWKWKH
ILQDOSULQFLSDOSD\PHQWRI5HYHQXHDQG5HIXQGLQJERQGVRXWVWDQGLQJDW'HFHPEHU
ZHUHDGHFUHDVHRIIURPWKHSUHYLRXV\HDU6HH1RWHLongTerm DebtLQWKH1RWHVWRWKH)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWVIRUPRUHLQIRUPDWLRQ





Page 14
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6XPPDU\RI6WDWHPHQWRI5HYHQXHV([SHQVHVDQG&KDQJHVLQ)XQG1HW3RVLWLRQ
,QFUHDVH


'HFUHDVH &KDQJH
0DULQD2SHUDWLRQV5HYHQXHV
  

3URSHUW\/HDVH5HQWDO2SHUDWLRQV5HYHQXHV   

1RQRSHUDWLQJ5HYHQXHV
  

7RWDO5HYHQXHV
  

2SHUDWLQJ([SHQVHV
1RQRSHUDWLQJ([SHQVHV
7RWDO([SHQVHV

  
   
  





,QFRPHEHIRUHRWKHUUHYHQXHVH[SHQVHV
JDLQVORVVHVDQGWUDQVIHUV

  



,QFUHDVHLQ1HW3RVLWLRQ

  



1HW3RVLWLRQ%HJLQQLQJ
3ULRU3HULRG$GMXVWPHQWV
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PORT OF EDMONDS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The discussion and analysis of the Port of Edmonds’ (the Port’s) financial performance provides
an overview of the Port’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. This
discussion and analysis is designed to assist the reader in focusing on the significant financial
issues and activities of the Port and to identify any significant changes in financial position.
Please read it in conjunction with the Port’s financial statements.
The Port of Edmonds is a Special Purpose Municipal Government. The Port was created in 1948
by a vote of the citizens of the Port district. The district encompasses portions of the City of
Edmonds and all of the Town of Woodway. Ports exist to build infrastructure and promote
economic development and tourism within their districts. Ports are often, though not always,
involved in transportation activities.
The Port of Edmonds operates a marina on Puget Sound for recreational boating. The marina
consists of an in-water facility with approximately 660 slips, a dry stack storage facility with
approximately 230 spaces, two public boat launches, a boatyard, a fuel dock, guest moorage,
offices, and parking facilities. In addition to the Port’s marina operations, the Port rents its land
to commercial users who then build suitable facilities on the land. The Port also owns and
manages eight buildings, renting portions of those buildings to approximately 60 tenants. Major
tenants include a hotel, an athletic club, and three restaurants.
Five elected Port Commissioners administer the Port. In accordance with the laws of
Washington, the Commissioners have appointed an Executive Director to manage Port
operations.
USING THE ANNUAL REPORT
Governmental accounting falls under the control of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB). All of the functions of the Port are considered in the numbers shown on the
following pages, including the cost of general government of the Port District. Since the Port is a
Special Purpose government, all of its assets and liabilities are shown in its Proprietary Fund.
The Port incurs a substantial amount of governmental activity expense, such as Port management
and administration, public facility maintenance, and public meeting expenses. All of these
expenses of the Port are reported in the Proprietary Fund. The “one fund” model is used in
compliance with the rules of GASB 34, which state that separately issued debt and separately
issued classified assets are needed in order for a separate fund to exist. Most of the governmental
costs are contained in the General and Administrative cost centers shown on the Port’s financial
reports. Since the Port is comprised of a single enterprise fund, no fund level financial statements
are shown.
Ports perform their accounting and financial reporting of their activities very much like a
business. The Port prepares an income statement, manages operations, and plans for capital
investments. Ports collect revenues from services performed for customers and pay for expenses
related to those services. However, ports are municipal governments. As such, ports may collect
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property tax revenues from the property owners within the Port district. These tax revenues may
go to support the capital investments made by the Port. Often, ports will use tax revenues to pay
for debt incurred to construct facilities that are used to support port functions. Sometimes, ports
may use a portion of their tax revenue to pay for operating expenses. The Port of Edmonds uses
its tax revenue to pay for Commission costs, to supplement the cost of public amenities, and to
promote economic development and tourism.
The financial statements provide a broad view of the Port’s operations in a manner similar to a
private-sector business. The financial statements take into account all revenues and expenses
connected with the fiscal year even if cash involved has not been received or paid.
The Statement of Net Position (also known as the Balance Sheet) presents all of the Port’s assets
and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases
and decreases in the Port’s net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the Port is improving or deteriorating.
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position presents information
showing how the Port’s net position changed during the year. Revenues less expenses, when
combined with other nonoperating items such as investment income, tax receipts and interest
expense, results in a net increase or decrease in the Port’s net position for the year.
The Statement of Cash Flows reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash
resulting from operations, and investing and financing activities. A reconciliation of the cash
provided by operating activities to the Port’s operating income as reflected on the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position is also included.
The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that may not be readily
apparent from the actual financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found
immediately following the financial statements.
One of the questions to be answered by the financial statements would be, “Is the Port as a whole
better off or worse off as a result of this year’s activities?” Changes in net position and cash
flows are two ways of measuring the financial position of the Port. Increases in Net Position as a
result of the year’s operations indicate an improved financial position. In 2016, the Port’s Net
Position increased by $1,741,820 or 5.4%, which shows that the Port of Edmonds performed
better in 2016 than in 2015. Cash flows show if the Port is spending more money than it
received. In 2016, the Port of Edmonds received $581,983 more than it spent or invested. Before
purchasing investments, the Port received $1,589,925 more than it spent. Overall, the Port is in a
better financial position than it was in 2015.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The Port’s 2016 marina operations revenues were $5,444,605, a decrease of $50,523 or 0.92%
less than the previous year. The primary cause of this decrease was the lack of recreational
fishing. 2016 property/lease rental operations revenues were $2,357,082, an increase of $100,427
or 4.45% greater than the previous year. This is partially due to an increase in lease rates and
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partially due to an increase in occupancy. As of December 31, 2016, the Port’s business park was
90% occupied. The Port’s 2016 non-operating revenues were $482,078, an increase of $13,064,
or 2.79% greater than the previous year.
The Port’s 2016 operating expenses were $6,212,511, a decrease of $18,520 or 0.30% less than
the previous year’s operating expense levels. The Port’s non-operating expenses were $329,434,
a decrease of $101,052, or 23.47% less than the previous year’s non-operating expense levels.
This decrease is due to the decrease in interest expense in 2016.
The Port’s operating income was $1,741,820 in 2016, as compared to $1,559,280 in 2015.
In 2016, the Port’s net position increased by $1,741,820.
The Port’s assets exceeded its liabilities by $34,045,700 (net position) as of December 31, 2016.
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS – STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Summary of Statement of Net Position
Increase
Current Assets
Investments

2016

2015

$ 8,246,407

$ 7,666,627

(Decrease)
$

% Change

579,780

7.56%

965,711

29.91%

4,194,890

3,229,179

Capital Assets, Net

30,166,088

31,621,769

Total Assets

42,607,385

42,517,575

89,810

0.21%

277,821

187,920

89,901

47.84%

42,885,206

42,705,495

179,711

0.42%

1,996,770

2,275,744

(278,974)

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current Liabilities

(1,455,681)

-4.60%

-12.26%

Noncurrent Liabilities

6,797,451

7,924,455

(1,127,004)

-14.22%

Total Liabilities

8,794,221

10,200,199

(1,405,978)

-13.78%

Deferred Inflows of Resources

45,285

201,416

(156,131)

-77.52%

Net investment in capital assets

25,344,231

25,422,745

(78,514)

-0.31%

Unrestricted
Total Net Position
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Revenues,
and Net Position

8,701,469

6,881,135

1,820,334

26.45%

34,045,700

32,303,880

1,741,820

5.39%

$ 42,885,206

$ 42,705,495

179,711

0.42%

$

This discussion of the Port’s financial statements includes an analysis of major changes in the
assets and liabilities for 2016, as well as reviewing changes in revenues and expenses reflected in

Page 19

the financial statements. The Port’s Total Net Position increased by $1,741,820 or 5.39% in
2016. Of this amount $25,344,231 reflects the Port’s net investment in capital assets.
CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital Asset
Land
Construction in progress
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Marina and other improvements

2016
$ 4,323,675
8,863
17,006,257
1,214,550
36,589,737
$ 59,143,082

2015
$ 4,323,675
522,169
16,429,775
1,206,471
36,506,802
$ 58,988,892

The Port has booked the acquisition of all assets at historical costs on its Statement of Net
Position. GASB 34 requires the Port to capitalize and depreciate all of the assets owned or
controlled by the Port, which is done on these financial statements. In 2016, the Port purchased
or constructed and capitalized two restroom facilities, a fuel dock office remodel, tenant
improvements at the Harbor Square business park, a new work truck, improvements on the Dry
Storage hydraulic launchers, and electrical improvements on I Dock.
The Port’s capital assets are classified into the following categories: land, construction in
progress, buildings, marina and other improvements, and machinery and equipment. Marina and
other improvements include assets such as docks, breakwaters, the dry stack facility, roads, and
landscaping. See Note 5, Capital Assets and Depreciation, in the Notes to the Financial
Statements for more information.
The Port maintained capital assets of $59,143,082 as of December 31, 2016. The book value of
the capital assets decreased by $1,455,681 in 2016 as a result of investments in capital assets,
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offset by depreciation charged against revenue in the year. When the Port invests more than
depreciation in new capital assets in a year, the book value of its asset base increases.
DEBT

Bond
2005 LTGO and Refunding Bonds
2011 Special Revenue Refunding Bonds

2016
$ 765,000
$ 4,060,887

2015
$ 1,500,000
$ 4,710,289

The Port’s current liabilities as of December 31, 2016, are debts that the Port will repay in 2017.
The total current liabilities decreased by $278,974 in 2016. Current liabilities include payments
for expenses already incurred, accrued interest on the Port’s bonds, customer deposits, and the
principal amount of the bond payments due in 2017.
The Port’s long term liabilities decreased by $1,127,004 in 2016, as the Port made principal
payments on its bonds. General Obligation bonds outstanding at December 31, 2016 were
$765,000, a decrease of $735,000 from 2015. Revenue and Refunding bonds outstanding at
December 31, 2016 were $4,060,887, a decrease of $649,402 from the previous year. See Note
10, Long-Term Debt in the Notes to the Financial Statements for more information.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS – REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
Summary of Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Increase
2016
2015
(Decrease)
% Change
Marina Operations Revenues
$ 5,444,605 $ 5,495,128 $
(50,523)
-0.92%
Property/Lease Rental Operations Revenues
2,357,082
2,256,655
100,427
4.45%
Nonoperating Revenues
482,078
469,014
13,064
2.79%
Total Revenues
8,283,765
8,220,797
62,968
0.77%
Operating Expenses
Nonoperating Expenses
Total Expenses

6,212,511
329,434
6,541,945

6,231,031
430,486
6,661,517

(18,520)
(101,052)
(119,572)

-0.30%
-23.47%
-1.79%

Income before other revenues, expenses, gains,
losses, and transfers

1,741,820

1,559,280

182,540

11.71%

Capital Contributions
Extraordinary/Special Items
Increase in Net Position

1,741,820

1,559,280

182,540

0.00%
0.00%
11.71%

32,143,773
160,107
(1,387,646)
1,387,646
(11,527)
11,527
$ 32,303,880 $ 1,741,820

0.50%
100.00%
100.00%
5.39%

Net Position - Beginning
Change in Accounting Principle
Prior Period Adjustments
Net Position - Ending

32,303,880

$ 34,045,700

While the Statement of Net Position shows the change in net position, the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position provides answers as to the nature and
source of these changes. The Port’s total revenues increased by $62,968 in 2016. Operating
revenues increased by $49,904 and nonoperating revenues increased by $13,064.
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Total expenses decreased by $119,572 in 2016. Operating expenses decreased by $18,520, and
nonoperating expenses decreased by $101,052.
CONTACTING THE PORT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and
creditors with a general overview of the Port’s finances and to show the Port’s accountability for
the money it receives. If you have questions about this report, or if you need additional financial
information, please contact Tina Drennan, Finance Manager, at the Port of Edmonds, 336
Admiral Way, Edmonds, WA 98020, by e-mail at tdrennan@portofedmonds.org, or by telephone
at (425) 673-2009.
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PORT OF EDMONDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2016

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 1 and 3)
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles) (Note 1)
Taxes receivable (Notes 1 and 4)
Interest receivable (Notes 1 and 3)
Inventory (Note 1)
Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

$ 7,979,299
44,267
9,703
9,811
65,238
138,089
8,246,407

Noncurrent Assets
Investments (Note 3)

4,194,890

Capital Assets
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated (Note 5)
Land
Construction in progress (Notes 5 and 6)
Capital Assets Being Depreciated (Note 5)
Buildings
Marina and other improvements
Machinery and equipment
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Total Net Capital Assets

4,323,675
8,863
17,006,257
36,589,737
1,214,550
(28,976,994)
30,166,088

Total Noncurrent Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

34,360,978
$ 42,607,385

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred loss on refunding (Note 1)
Deferred pension outflow (Notes 1 and 7)
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

$
$

4,030
273,791
277,821

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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PORT OF EDMONDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

OPERATING REVENUES (Note 1)
Marina operations
Property lease/rental operations
Total Operating Revenues

$ 5,444,605
2,357,082
7,801,687

OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 1)
General operations
Maintenance
General and administrative
Depreciation (Note 5)
Total Operating Expenses

3,220,134
373,012
954,219
1,665,146
6,212,511

Operating Income

1,589,176

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) (Note 1)
Investment income (Note 3)
Taxes levied for general purposes (Note 4)
Grant proceeds
Change in fair value of investments (Note 3)
Gain on disposition of fixed assets
Interest expense (Note 10)
Election expense
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Increase in net position
Net position as of January 1
Net position as of December 31

69,607
406,854
1,552
(42,231)
4,065
(287,203)
152,644
1,741,820
32,303,880
$ 34,045,700

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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PORT OF EDMONDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers (Note 1)
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from property taxes (Note 4)
Nonoperating receipts (Note 1)
Nonoperating expenses (Note 1)
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

$ 7,885,793
(2,511,508)
(2,377,401)
2,996,884

405,214
1,552
406,766

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases and construction of capital assets (Note 5)
Principal paid on capital debt (Note 10)
Interest paid on capital debt (Note 10)
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

(213,460)
(1,384,402)
(282,447)
(1,880,309)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Maturities of investments (Note 3)
Purchases of investments (Note 3)
Interest and dividends
Net cash used by investing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Balances - beginning of the year
Balances - end of the year (Note 1)

2,000,000
(3,007,942)
66,584
(941,358)
581,983
7,397,316
7,979,299

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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PORT OF EDMONDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Operating income
1,589,176
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation expense (Note 5)
1,665,146
Other post-employment benefits expense (Note 8)
81,244
Pension negative expense (Notes 1 and 7)
(35,157)
Changes in assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable
29,944
(Increase)/decrease in inventory
(18,322)
(Increase)/decrease in prepaid expenses
(4,756)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable
(374,936)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued expenses
2,491
Increase/(decrease) in customer deposits
49,626
Increase/(decrease) in unearned revenue
4,536
Increase/(decrease) in employee benefits payable
7,892
Net cash provided by operating activities
$ 2,996,884
Schedule of Non-Cash Activities
Change in Fair Value of Investments (Note 3)

(42,231)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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7KHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRIWKH3RUWRI(GPRQGV WKH3RUW KDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGLQFRQIRUPLW\
ZLWKJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDFFRXQWLQJSULQFLSOHV *$$3 DVDSSOLHGWRJRYHUQPHQWV7KH
*RYHUQPHQWDO$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV%RDUG *$6% LVWKHDFFHSWHGVWDQGDUGVHWWLQJERG\IRU
HVWDEOLVKLQJJRYHUQPHQWDODFFRXQWLQJDQGILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJSULQFLSOHV7KHVLJQLILFDQW
DFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHVDUHGHVFULEHGEHORZ

$
5HSRUWLQJ(QWLW\

7KH3RUWZDVLQFRUSRUDWHGLQ'HFHPEHUDQGRSHUDWHVXQGHUWKHODZVRIWKH6WDWHRI
:DVKLQJWRQDSSOLFDEOHWRSXEOLFSRUWGLVWULFWV7KH3RUWLVDVSHFLDOSXUSRVHJRYHUQPHQW
DQGSURYLGHVPDULQDDQGSURSHUW\OHDVHUHQWDORSHUDWLRQVWRWKHJHQHUDOSXEOLFDQGLV
VXSSRUWHGSULPDULO\WKURXJKXVHUFKDUJHV7KH3RUWLVJRYHUQHGE\DQHOHFWHGILYH
PHPEHUERDUG

$VUHTXLUHGE\JHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDFFRXQWLQJSULQFLSOHVPDQDJHPHQWKDVFRQVLGHUHGDOO
SRWHQWLDOFRPSRQHQWXQLWVLQGHILQLQJWKHUHSRUWLQJHQWLW\7KH3RUWKDVQRFRPSRQHQW
XQLWV

%
%DVLVRI$FFRXQWLQJDQG5HSRUWLQJ

7KHDFFRXQWLQJUHFRUGVRIWKH3RUWDUHPDLQWDLQHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKPHWKRGVSUHVFULEHG
E\WKH6WDWH$XGLWRUXQGHUWKHDXWKRULW\RI&KDSWHU5&:7KH3RUWXVHVWKH
Budgeting, Accounting and Reporting System for GAAP Cities, Counties, and Special
Purpose DistrictsLQWKH6WDWHRI:DVKLQJWRQ

7KH3RUW¶VILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDUHUHSRUWHGXVLQJWKHHFRQRPLFUHVRXUFHVPHDVXUHPHQW
IRFXVDQGWKHIXOODFFUXDOEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJ5HYHQXHVDUHUHFRUGHGZKHQHDUQHGDQG
H[SHQVHVDUHUHFRUGHGZKHQDOLDELOLW\LVLQFXUUHGUHJDUGOHVVRIWKHWLPLQJRIUHODWHGFDVK
IORZV3URSHUW\WD[HVDUHUHFRJQL]HGDVUHYHQXHLQWKH\HDULQZKLFKWKH\DUHOHYLHG
*UDQWVDQGVLPLODULWHPVDUHUHFRJQL]HGDVUHYHQXHDVVRRQDVHOLJLELOLW\UHTXLUHPHQWV
LPSRVHGE\WKHSURYLGHUKDYHEHHQPHW

$OODVVHWVDQGDOOOLDELOLWLHV ZKHWKHUFXUUHQWRUQRQFXUUHQW DVVRFLDWHGZLWKWKH3RUW¶V
DFWLYLW\DUHLQFOXGHGRQWKHVWDWHPHQWRIQHWSRVLWLRQ1HWSRVLWLRQLVVHJUHJDWHGLQWRQHW
LQYHVWPHQWLQFDSLWDODVVHWVDQGUHVWULFWHGDQGXQUHVWULFWHGFRPSRQHQWVRIQHWSRVLWLRQ
2SHUDWLQJVWDWHPHQWVSUHVHQWLQFUHDVHV UHYHQXHVDQGJDLQV DQGGHFUHDVHV H[SHQVHVDQG
ORVVHV LQQHWSRVLWLRQ7KH3RUWGLVFORVHVFKDQJHVLQFDVKIORZVRQDVHSDUDWHVWDWHPHQW
WKDWSUHVHQWVLWVRSHUDWLQJQRQFDSLWDOILQDQFLQJFDSLWDODQGUHODWHGILQDQFLQJDQG
LQYHVWLQJDFWLYLWLHV
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7KH3RUWGLVWLQJXLVKHVEHWZHHQRSHUDWLQJUHYHQXHVDQGH[SHQVHVDQGQRQRSHUDWLQJLWHPV
2SHUDWLQJUHYHQXHVDQGH[SHQVHVUHVXOWIURPSURYLGLQJVHUYLFHVDQGSURGXFLQJDQG
GHOLYHULQJJRRGVLQFRQQHFWLRQZLWKWKH3RUW¶VSULQFLSDORQJRLQJRSHUDWLRQV7KH
SULQFLSDORSHUDWLQJUHYHQXHVRIWKH3RUWDUHFKDUJHVWRFXVWRPHUVIRUERDWLQJVHUYLFHV
7KH3RUWDOVRUHFRJQL]HVODQGDQGEXLOGLQJOHDVHUHYHQXHDVRSHUDWLQJUHYHQXH2SHUDWLQJ
H[SHQVHVIRUWKH3RUWLQFOXGHJHQHUDORSHUDWLRQVPDLQWHQDQFHJHQHUDODQG
DGPLQLVWUDWLYHDQGGHSUHFLDWLRQ5HYHQXHVDQGH[SHQVHVQRWPHHWLQJWKLVGHILQLWLRQDUH
UHSRUWHGDVQRQRSHUDWLQJUHYHQXHVDQGH[SHQVHV

8VHRI(VWLPDWHV

7KHSUHSDUDWLRQRIILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQFRQIRUPLW\ZLWKJHQHUDOO\DFFHSWHGDFFRXQWLQJ
SULQFLSOHVUHTXLUHVPDQDJHPHQWWRPDNHHVWLPDWHVDQGDVVXPSWLRQVWKDWDIIHFWFHUWDLQ
UHSRUWHGDPRXQWVDQGGLVFORVXUHV$FFRUGLQJO\DFWXDOUHVXOWVFRXOGGLIIHUIURPWKRVH
HVWLPDWHV
$VVHWV/LDELOLWLHVDQG1HW3RVLWLRQ


&DVKDQG&DVK(TXLYDOHQWV

,WLVWKH3RUW¶VSROLF\WRLQYHVWDOOWHPSRUDU\FDVKVXUSOXVHV$W'HFHPEHU
WKHWUHDVXUHUZDVKROGLQJLQVKRUWWHUPUHVLGXDOLQYHVWPHQWVRI
VXUSOXVFDVK7KLVDPRXQWLVFODVVLILHGRQWKH6WDWHPHQWRI1HW3RVLWLRQDVFDVK
DQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV

7KHDPRXQWVUHSRUWHGDVFDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWVDOVRLQFOXGHFRPSHQVDWLQJ
EDODQFHVPDLQWDLQHGZLWKFHUWDLQEDQNVLQOLHXRISD\PHQWVIRUVHUYLFHVUHQGHUHG
7KHDYHUDJHFRPSHQVDWLQJEDODQFHVPDLQWDLQHGGXULQJZHUHDSSUR[LPDWHO\


7KH3RUWFRQVLGHUVDOOKLJKO\OLTXLGLQYHVWPHQWV LQFOXGLQJUHVWULFWHGDVVHWV ZLWK
DPDWXULW\RIWKUHHPRQWKVRUOHVVZKHQSXUFKDVHGWREHFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV

,QYHVWPHQWV±6HH1RWHDeposits and Investments

5HFHLYDEOHV





$FFRXQWVUHFHLYDEOHFRQVLVWRIDPRXQWVRZHGIURPSULYDWHLQGLYLGXDOVRU
RUJDQL]DWLRQVIRUJRRGVDQGVHUYLFHVLQFOXGLQJDPRXQWVRZHGIRUZKLFKELOOLQJV
KDYHQRWEHHQSUHSDUHG7KH3RUWFODVVLILHVSUHSDLGUHQWIURPODQGDQGEXLOGLQJ
WHQDQWVDVXQHDUQHGUHYHQXHLQWKHFXUUHQWOLDELOLW\VHFWLRQRIWKHILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV

7D[HVUHFHLYDEOHFRQVLVWVRISURSHUW\WD[HVDQGUHODWHGLQWHUHVWDQGSHQDOWLHV 6HH
1RWHProperty Taxes 
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5HFHLYDEOHVKDYHEHHQUHFRUGHGQHWRIHVWLPDWHGXQFROOHFWLEOHDPRXQWV%HFDXVH
SURSHUW\WD[HVDUHFRQVLGHUHGOLHQVRQSURSHUW\QRHVWLPDWHGXQFROOHFWLEOH
DPRXQWVDUHHVWDEOLVKHG

$FFUXHGLQWHUHVWUHFHLYDEOHFRQVLVWVRIDPRXQWVHDUQHGRQLQYHVWPHQWVDWWKHHQG
RIWKH\HDU

,QYHQWRU\

,QYHQWRU\FRQVLVWVRIIXHODQGZRUN\DUGVXSSOLHVKHOGIRUVDOHWRFXVWRPHUV
,QYHQWRU\LVYDOXHGE\WKH),)2 ILUVWLQILUVWRXWEDVLV FRVWPHWKRGZKLFK
DSSUR[LPDWHVPDUNHWYDOXH






&DSLWDO$VVHWVDQG'HSUHFLDWLRQ6HH1RWHCapital Assets and Depreciation

'HIHUUHG2XWIORZV,QIORZVRI5HVRXUFHV




7KH3RUWUHSRUWVGHIHUUHGRXWIORZVDQGGHIHUUHGLQIORZVVHSDUDWHO\RQWKH
6WDWHPHQWRI1HW3RVLWLRQ'HIHUUHGRXWIORZVUHSUHVHQWDFRQVXPSWLRQRIQHW
DVVHWVWKDWDSSOLHVWRDIXWXUHSHULRG V &RQYHUVHO\GHIHUUHGLQIORZVUHSUHVHQWDQ
DFTXLVLWLRQRIQHWDVVHWVWKDWDSSOLHVWRDIXWXUHSHULRG V 

(PSOR\HH/HDYH%HQHILWV




(PSOR\HHOHDYHEHQHILWVDUHDEVHQFHVIRUZKLFKHPSOR\HHVZLOOEHSDLGVXFKDV
YDFDWLRQDQGKROLGD\OHDYH7KH3RUWUHFRUGVHPSOR\HHOHDYHEHQHILWVDVDQ
H[SHQVHDQGOLDELOLW\ZKHQHDUQHG




(DFKHPSOR\HHPD\FDUU\IRUZDUGKRXUVRIYDFDWLRQSD\WRWKHIROORZLQJ
\HDU8QXVHGYDFDWLRQSD\LVSD\DEOHXSRQVHSDUDWLRQUHWLUHPHQWRUGHDWK6LFN
OHDYHPD\DFFXPXODWHXSWRKRXUV%HJLQQLQJLQWKH([HFXWLYH
'LUHFWRU¶VFRQWUDFWDOORZVKLPWREHFRPSHQVDWHGIRURIKLVVLFNSD\XSRQ
WHUPLQDWLRQ7KH3RUWEHJDQDFFUXLQJWKLVLQ1RDFFUXDOLVPDGHIRUVLFN
SD\IRURWKHUHPSOR\HHVDVLWH[SLUHVLIXQXVHG

3HQVLRQV


)RUSXUSRVHVRIPHDVXULQJWKHQHWSHQVLRQOLDELOLW\GHIHUUHGRXWIORZVRI
UHVRXUFHVDQGGHIHUUHGLQIORZVRIUHVRXUFHVUHODWHGWRSHQVLRQVDQGSHQVLRQ
H[SHQVHLQIRUPDWLRQDERXWWKHILGXFLDU\QHWSRVLWLRQRIDOOVWDWHVSRQVRUHG
SHQVLRQSODQVDQGDGGLWLRQVWRGHGXFWLRQVIURPWKRVHSODQV¶ILGXFLDU\QHWSRVLWLRQ
KDYHEHHQGHWHUPLQHGRQWKHVDPHEDVLVDVWKH\DUHUHSRUWHGE\WKH:DVKLQJWRQ
6WDWH'HSDUWPHQWRI5HWLUHPHQW6\VWHPV)RUWKLVSXUSRVHEHQHILWSD\PHQWV
LQFOXGLQJUHIXQGVRIHPSOR\HHFRQWULEXWLRQV DUHUHFRJQL]HGZKHQGXHDQG
SD\DEOHLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHEHQHILWWHUPV,QYHVWPHQWVDUHUHSRUWHGDWIDLU
YDOXH
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$FFUXHG([SHQVHV


$FFUXHGH[SHQVHVFRQVLVWRIDFFUXHGOHDVHKROGSD\UROOVDOHVDQGEXVLQHVVWD[HV
HPSOR\HHZLWKKROGLQJVDFFUXHGZDJHVSD\DEOHDQGDEDQGRQHGSURSHUW\

 /RQJ7HUP'HEW6HH1RWHLong-Term Debt

 8QHDUQHG5HYHQXHV

$W'HFHPEHUWKH3RUWKHOGLQ8QHDUQHG5HYHQXH7KHVH
DPRXQWVDUHSUHSD\PHQWVRIUHQWDQGZLOOEHUHFRJQL]HGDVUHYHQXHLQ

127(±67(:$5'6+,3&203/,$1&($1'$&&2817$%,/,7<

7KHUHKDYHEHHQQRPDWHULDOYLRODWLRQVRIILQDQFHUHODWHGOHJDORUFRQWUDFWXDOSURYLVLRQV

127(±'(326,76$1',19(670(176

$
'HSRVLWV

7KH3RUW¶VGHSRVLWVDQGFHUWLILFDWHVRIGHSRVLWDUHHQWLUHO\FRYHUHGE\IHGHUDOGHSRVLWRU\
LQVXUDQFH )',& RUE\FROODWHUDOKHOGLQDPXOWLSOHILQDQFLDOLQVWLWXWLRQFROODWHUDOSRRO
DGPLQLVWHUHGE\WKH:DVKLQJWRQ3XEOLF'HSRVLW3URWHFWLRQ&RPPLVVLRQ 3'3& $V
LQYHVWPHQWVLQWKH:DVKLQJWRQ/RFDO*RYHUQPHQW,QYHVWPHQW3RROKDYHDPDWXULW\RI
WKUHHPRQWKVRUOHVVZKHQSXUFKDVHGGHSRVLWVLQWKH,QYHVWPHQW3RRODUHLQFOXGHGLQ
FDVKDQGFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV

%
,QYHVWPHQWV$XWKRUL]HG

7KH3RUWPD\LQYHVWLQDOOW\SHVRIVHFXULWLHVDSSURYHGE\6WDWHODZ7KRVHVHFXULWLHV
LQFOXGH


6DYLQJVRUWLPHDFFRXQWVLQFOXGLQJFHUWLILFDWHVRIGHSRVLWLQGHVLJQDWHGTXDOLILHG
SXEOLFGHSRVLWRULHVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK5&:


&HUWLILFDWHVRIGHSRVLWLQFRPPHUFLDOEDQNVVDYLQJVDQGORDQDVVRFLDWLRQVDQG
PXWXDOVDYLQJVEDQNVGRLQJEXVLQHVVLQWKLVVWDWHEXWQRWKROGLQJFROODWHUDOSXU
VXDQWWR5&:LQDQDPRXQWQRWLQH[FHVVRI)',&RU)6/,&LQVXUDQFH
FRYHUDJH


&HUWLILFDWHVQRWHVRUERQGVRIWKH8QLWHG6WDWHVRURWKHUREOLJDWLRQVRIWKH86
JRYHUQPHQWRULWVDJHQFLHVRURIDQ\FRUSRUDWLRQZKROO\RZQHGE\WKHJRYHUQ
PHQWRIWKH8QLWHG6WDWHV


Page 37





)HGHUDOKRPHORDQEDQNQRWHVDQGERQGV)HGHUDOODQGEDQNERQGV)HGHUDOQD
WLRQDOPRUWJDJHDVVRFLDWLRQQRWHVGHEHQWXUHVDQGJXDUDQWHHGFHUWLILFDWHVRISDU
WLFLSDWLRQ
2EOLJDWLRQVRIDQ\RWKHUJRYHUQPHQWVSRQVRUHGFRUSRUDWLRQZKRVHREOLJDWLRQVDUH
RUPD\EHFRPHHOLJLEOHDVFROODWHUDOIRUDGYDQFHVWRPHPEHUEDQNVDVGHWHUPLQHG
E\WKHERDUGRIJRYHUQRUVRIWKHIHGHUDOUHVHUYHV\VWHPV









%RQGVRIWKHVWDWHRI:DVKLQJWRQDQGDQ\ORFDOJRYHUQPHQWLQWKH6WDWHRI:DVK
LQJWRQWKDWFDUU\RQHRIWKHWKUHHKLJKHVWUDWLQJVRIDQDWLRQDOO\UHFRJQL]HGUDWLQJ
DJHQF\
*HQHUDOREOLJDWLRQERQGVRIDVWDWHRWKHUWKDQWKHVWDWHRI:DVKLQJWRQDQGJHQHUDO
REOLJDWLRQERQGVRIDORFDOJRYHUQPHQWRIDVWDWHRWKHUWKDQWKHVWDWHRI:DVKLQJ
WRQWKDWFDUU\RQHRIWKHWKUHHKLJKHVWUDWLQJVRIDQDWLRQDOO\UHFRJQL]HGUDWLQJ
DJHQF\
6KDUHVRIPRQH\PDUNHWIXQGVZLWKSRUWIROLRVFRQVLVWLQJRIVHFXULWLHVRWKHUZLVH
DXWKRUL]HGE\ODZIRULQYHVWPHQWE\ORFDOJRYHUQPHQWV


3RUWVWDIILQYHVWVVXUSOXVFDVKDFFRUGLQJWR3RUW5HVROXWLRQ1XPEHU,QYHVWPHQW
REMHFWLYHVLQSULRULW\RUGHUDUHVDIHW\OLTXLGLW\DQGUHWXUQRQLQYHVWPHQW

&

'


,QWHUHVW5DWH5LVN

,QWHUHVWUDWHULVNLVWKHULVNWKDWDQLQYHVWPHQW¶VIDLUYDOXHGHFUHDVHVDVPDUNHWLQWHUHVW
UDWHVLQFUHDVH7KURXJKLWVLQYHVWPHQWSROLF\WKH3RUWPDQDJHVLWVH[SRVXUHWRIDLUYDOXH
ORVVHVDULVLQJIURPLQFUHDVLQJLQWHUHVWUDWHVE\VHWWLQJPDWXULW\DQGHIIHFWLYHGXUDWLRQ
OLPLWVIRUWKH3RUW¶V,QYHVWPHQW3RUWIROLR6HFXULWLHVZLWKLQWKHSRUWIROLRDUHOLPLWHGWR
PDWXULW\OHQJWKVRIILYH\HDUV

$VRI'HFHPEHUWKH3RUWKHOGWKHIROORZLQJLQYHVWPHQWV
,QYHVWPHQW0DWXULWLHV LQ<HDUV

,QYHVWPHQW7\SH
867UHDVXU\6WULSV
86$JHQFLHV
&HUWLILFDWHRI'HSRVLW UHVWULFWHG
7RWDO,QYHVWPHQWV
3HUFHQWDJHRI3RUWIROLR

)DLU9DOXH





RI7RWDO
/HVV7KDQ

0RUH7KDQ 3RUWIROLR
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&XVWRGLDO&UHGLW5LVN

&XVWRGLDOFUHGLWULVNLVWKHULVNWKDWLQHYHQWRIDIDLOXUHRIWKHFRXQWHUSDUW\WRDQ
LQYHVWPHQWWUDQVDFWLRQWKH3RUWZRXOGQRWEHDEOHWRUHFRYHUWKHYDOXHRIWKHLQYHVWPHQW
RUFROODWHUDOVHFXULWLHV$OOVHFXULW\WUDQVDFWLRQVHQWHUHGLQWRE\WKH3RUWRI(GPRQGVDUH
FRQGXFWHGRQDGHOLYHU\YHUVXVSD\PHQW '93 EDVLV6HFXULWLHVSXUFKDVHGE\WKH3RUW
DUHGHOLYHUHGDJDLQVWSD\PHQWDQGKHOGLQDFXVWRGLDOVDIHNHHSLQJDFFRXQW7KH3RUWKDV
GHVLJQDWHG86%DQNDVWKHWKLUGSDUW\FXVWRGLDQ6DIHNHHSLQJUHFHLSWVHYLGHQFHDOO
WUDQVDFWLRQV1RQHRIWKH3RUW¶VLQYHVWPHQWVDUHKHOGE\FRXQWHUSDUWLHV

&KDQJHLQ)DLU9DOXHRI,QYHVWPHQWV
&KDQJHLQIDLUYDOXHRILQYHVWPHQWVRI  LVWKHGLIIHUHQFHEHWZHHQWKHSULFHDW
'HFHPEHURUDWZKLFKWKH3RUWRI(GPRQGVSXUFKDVHGWKHVHFXULWLHVZKLFKHYHU
LVODWHUDQGWKHIDLUYDOXHDW'HFHPEHU*$6%6WDWHPHQW1XPEHUSDUDJUDSK
UHTXLUHVWKH3RUWWR³«UHSRUWLQYHVWPHQWVDWIDLUYDOXHLQWKHEDODQFHVKHHWV)DLUYDOXH
LVWKHDPRXQWDWZKLFKDQLQYHVWPHQWFRXOGEHH[FKDQJHGLQDFXUUHQWWUDQVDFWLRQ
EHWZHHQZLOOLQJSDUWLHV«´7KHPDUNHWYDOXHRUIDLUYDOXHLVUHSRUWHGWRWKH3RUWE\86
%DQNWKH3RUW¶VWKLUGSDUW\VDIHNHHSLQJEDQN,IWKH3RUWKROGVWKHLQYHVWPHQWVWR
PDWXULW\RUFDOOGDWHWKHUHZLOOEHQRUHDOL]HGORVVRUJDLQ

,QYHVWPHQWVLQ/RFDO*RYHUQPHQW,QYHVWPHQW3RRO /*,3 
7KH3RUWLVDSDUWLFLSDQWLQWKH/RFDO*RYHUQPHQW,QYHVWPHQW3RROZKLFKZDVDXWKRUL]HG
E\&KDSWHU/DZVRIDQGLVPDQDJHGDQGRSHUDWHGE\WKH:DVKLQJWRQ6WDWH
7UHDVXUHU7KH6WDWH)LQDQFH&RPPLWWHHLVWKHDGPLQLVWUDWRURIWKHVWDWXWHWKDWFUHDWHGWKH
SRRODQGDGRSWVUXOHV7KH6WDWH7UHDVXUHULVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUHVWDEOLVKLQJWKHLQYHVWPHQW
SROLF\IRUWKHSRRODQGUHYLHZVWKHSROLF\DQQXDOO\DQGSURSRVHGFKDQJHVDUHUHYLHZHG
E\WKH/*,3DGYLVRU\&RPPLWWHH

,QYHVWPHQWVLQWKH/*,3DTXDOLILHGH[WHUQDOLQYHVWPHQWSRRODUHUHSRUWHGDWDPRUWL]HG
FRVWZKLFKDSSUR[LPDWHVIDLUYDOXH7KH/*,3LVDQXQUDWHGH[WHUQDOLQYHVWPHQWSRRO
7KHSRROSRUWIROLRLVLQYHVWHGLQDPDQQHUWKDWPHHWVWKHPDWXULW\TXDOLW\GLYHUVLILFDWLRQ
DQGOLTXLGLW\UHTXLUHPHQWVVHWIRUWKE\*$6%6WDWHPHQW1XPEHUIRUH[WHUQDO
LQYHVWPHQWVSRROVWKDWHOHFWWRPHDVXUHIRUILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJSXUSRVHVLQYHVWPHQWVDW
DPRUWL]HGFRVW7KH/*,3GRHVQRWKDYHDQ\OHJDOO\ELQGLQJJXDUDQWHHVRIVKDUHYDOXHV
7KH/*,3GRHVQRWLPSRVHOLTXLGLW\IHHVRUUHGHPSWLRQJDWHVRQSDUWLFLSDQWZLWKGUDZDOV

$VWKHPDWXULW\RI/*,3LQYHVWPHQWVLVPRQWKVRUOHVVWKH3RUWFRQVLGHUV/*,3
LQYHVWPHQWVWREHFDVKHTXLYDOHQWV





7KH2IILFHRIWKH6WDWH7UHDVXUHUSUHSDUHVDVWDQGDORQH/*,3ILQDQFLDOUHSRUW$FRS\RI
WKHUHSRUWLVDYDLODEOHIURPWKH2IILFHRIWKH6WDWH7UHDVXUHU32%R[2O\PSLD
:DVKLQJWRQRQOLQHDWKWWSZZZWUHZDJRY
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127(±3523(57<7$;(6

7KHFRXQW\WUHDVXUHUDFWVDVDQDJHQWWRFROOHFWSURSHUW\WD[HVOHYLHGLQWKHFRXQW\IRUDOOWD[LQJ
DXWKRULWLHV

3URSHUW\7D[&DOHQGDU
-DQXDU\
 7D[HVDUHOHYLHGDQGEHFRPHDQHQIRUFHDEOHOLHQDJDLQVWSURSHUWLHV
)HEUXDU\  7D[ELOOVDUHPDLOHG
$SULO
 )LUVWRIWZRHTXDOLQVWDOOPHQWSD\PHQWVLVGXH
 $VVHVVHGYDOXHRISURSHUW\LVHVWDEOLVKHGIRUQH[W\HDU¶VOHY\DW
0D\
SHUFHQWRIPDUNHWYDOXH
2FWREHU
 6HFRQGLQVWDOOPHQWLVGXH

3URSHUW\WD[HVDUHUHFRUGHGDVDUHFHLYDEOHZKHQOHYLHGRIIVHWE\DQXQHDUQHGUHYHQXH'XULQJ
WKH\HDUSURSHUW\WD[UHYHQXHVDUHUHFRJQL]HGHTXDOO\RYHUDOOWZHOYHPRQWKV3URSHUW\WD[HV
FROOHFWHGLQDGYDQFHRIWKHILVFDO\HDUWRZKLFKLWDSSOLHVLVUHFRUGHGDVDGHIHUUHGLQIORZDQG
UHFRJQL]HGDVUHYHQXHRIWKHSHULRGWRZKLFKLWDSSOLHV1RDOORZDQFHIRUXQFROOHFWLEOHWD[LV
HVWDEOLVKHGEHFDXVHGHOLQTXHQWWD[HVDUHFRQVLGHUHGIXOO\FROOHFWLEOH3ULRU\HDUWD[OHYLHVZHUH
UHFRUGHGXVLQJWKHVDPHSULQFLSOHDQGGHOLQTXHQWWD[HVDUHHYDOXDWHGDQQXDOO\

7KH3RUWPD\OHY\XSWRSHURIDVVHVVHGYDOXDWLRQIRUJHQHUDOJRYHUQPHQWDO
VHUYLFHV:DVKLQJWRQ6WDWH&RQVWLWXWLRQDQG:DVKLQJWRQ6WDWHODZ5&:OLPLWWKH
UDWH7KH3RUWPD\DOVROHY\WD[HVDWDORZHUUDWH

7KH3RUW¶VUHJXODUOHY\IRUZDVDSSUR[LPDWHO\SHURQDQDVVHVVHGYDOXDWLRQ
RIIRUDWRWDOUHJXODUWD[OHY\RI

127(±&$3,7$/$66(76$1''(35(&,$7,21

&DSLWDODVVHWVLQFOXGHODQGEXLOGLQJVHTXLSPHQWDQGLPSURYHPHQWV&DSLWDODVVHWVDUHGHILQHG
E\WKH3RUWDVDVVHWVZLWKDQLQLWLDOLQGLYLGXDOFRVWRIPRUHWKDQDQGDQHVWLPDWHGXVHIXO
OLIHLQH[FHVVRI\HDU6XFKDVVHWVDUHUHFRUGHGDWKLVWRULFDOFRVWRUHVWLPDWHGKLVWRULFDOFRVW
ZKHUHKLVWRULFDOFRVWLVQRWNQRZQ'RQDWHGFDSLWDODVVHWVDUHUHFRUGHGDWDFTXLVLWLRQYDOXHDWWKH
GDWHRIGRQDWLRQ

&RVWVIRUDGGLWLRQVRULPSURYHPHQWVWRFDSLWDODVVHWVDUHFDSLWDOL]HGZKHQWKH\LQFUHDVHWKH
HIIHFWLYHQHVVRUHIILFLHQF\RIWKHDVVHW7KHFRVWVIRUQRUPDOPDLQWHQDQFHDQGUHSDLUVDUHQRW
FDSLWDOL]HG

0DMRURXWOD\VIRUFDSLWDODVVHWVDQGLPSURYHPHQWVDUHFDSLWDOL]HGDVSURMHFWVDUHFRQVWUXFWHG
,QWHUHVWLQFXUUHGGXULQJWKHFRQVWUXFWLRQSKDVHRIWKHFDSLWDODVVHWVLVLQFOXGHGDVSDUWRIWKH
FDSLWDOL]HGYDOXHRIWKHDVVHWVFRQVWUXFWHG

7KH3RUWKDVDFTXLUHGFHUWDLQDVVHWVZLWKIXQGLQJSURYLGHGE\IHGHUDODQGVWDWHILQDQFLDO
DVVLVWDQFHSURJUDPV'HSHQGLQJRQWKHWHUPVRIWKHDJUHHPHQWVLQYROYHGWKHIHGHUDODQGVWDWH
JRYHUQPHQWVFRXOGUHWDLQDQHTXLW\LQWHUHVWLQWKHVHDVVHWV+RZHYHUWKH3RUWKDVVXIILFLHQWOHJDO
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LQWHUHVWWRDFFRPSOLVKWKHSXUSRVHVIRUZKLFKWKHDVVHWVZHUHDFTXLUHGDQGKDVLQFOXGHGVXFK
DVVHWVZLWKLQWKHDSSOLFDEOHDFFRXQW

:KHQDQDVVHWLVVROGUHWLUHGRURWKHUZLVHGLVSRVHGRIWKHRULJLQDOFRVWRIWKHSURSHUW\DQGWKH
FRVWRILQVWDOODWLRQOHVVVDOYDJHLVUHPRYHGIURPWKH3RUWRI(GPRQGV¶FDSLWDODVVHWDFFRXQWV
DFFXPXODWHGGHSUHFLDWLRQLVFKDUJHGZLWKWKHDFFXPXODWHGGHSUHFLDWLRQUHODWHGWRWKHSURSHUW\
VROGDQGWKHQHWJDLQRUORVVRQGLVSRVLWLRQLVFUHGLWHGRUFKDUJHGWRLQFRPH

'HSUHFLDWLRQH[SHQVHLVFKDUJHGWRRSHUDWLRQVWRDOORFDWHWKHFRVWRIFDSLWDODVVHWVRYHUWKHLU
HVWLPDWHGXVHIXOOLYHVXVLQJWKHVWUDLJKWOLQHPHWKRGEDVHGRQWKHIROORZLQJHVWLPDWHGXVHIXO
OLYHV

%XLOGLQJVDQG6WUXFWXUHV
WR\HDUV
0DFKLQHU\DQG(TXLSPHQW
WR\HDUV
2WKHU,PSURYHPHQWV
WR\HDUV

&DSLWDODVVHWVDFWLYLW\IRUWKH\HDUHQGHG'HFHPEHUZDVDVIROORZV

%HJLQQLQJ
%DODQFH


,QFUHDVHV

'HFUHDVHV

(QGLQJ
%DODQFH


&DSLWDODVVHWVQRWEHLQJGHSUHFLDWHG
/DQG
&RQVWUXFWLRQLQSURJUHVV
7RWDOFDSLWDODVVHWVQRWEHLQJGHSUHFLDWHG

   
   
   

&DSLWDODVVHWVEHLQJGHSUHFLDWHG
%XLOGLQJV
0DULQDDQGRWKHULPSURYHPHQWV
0DFKLQHU\DQGHTXLSPHQW
7RWDOFDSLWDODVVHWVEHLQJGHSUHFLDWHG





















/HVVDFFXPXODWHGGHSUHFLDWLRQIRU
%XLOGLQJV
0DULQDDQGRWKHULPSURYHPHQWV
0DFKLQHU\DQGHTXLSPHQW
7RWDODFFXPXODWHGGHSUHFLDWLRQ





















7RWDOFDSLWDODVVHWVEHLQJGHSUHFLDWHGQHW
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127(±&216758&7,21$1'27+(56,*1,),&$17&200,70(176

7KH3RUWKDVDFWLYHFRQVWUXFWLRQSURMHFWVDVRI'HFHPEHU$W\HDUHQGWKH3RUW¶V
FRPPLWPHQWVZLWKFRQWUDFWRUVDUHDVIROORZV

5HPDLQLQJ
3URMHFW
6SHQWWR'DWH
&RPPLWPHQW
)XHO'RFN'LVSHQVHUV


0DULQD2SHUDWLRQV%DWKURRPV






2IWKHFRPPLWWHGEDODQFHRIWKH3RUWKDVVXIILFLHQWIXQGLQJDYDLODEOHDVSHU1RWH±
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies6HFWLRQ'±Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position
1XPEHU±Cash and Cash Equivalents

127(±3(16,213/$16

7KHIROORZLQJWDEOHUHSUHVHQWVWKHDJJUHJDWHSHQVLRQDPRXQWVIRUDOOSODQVVXEMHFWWRWKH
UHTXLUHPHQWVRIWKH*$6%6WDWHPHQWAccounting and Financial Reporting for PensionsIRU
WKH\HDU

$JJUHJDWH3HQVLRQ$PRXQWV$OO3ODQV
3HQVLRQOLDELOLWLHV
 
3HQVLRQDVVHWV

'HIHUUHGRXWIORZVRIUHVRXUFHV

'HIHUUHGLQIORZVRIUHVRXUFHV
 
3HQVLRQH[SHQVHH[SHQGLWXUHV
 

6WDWH6SRQVRUHG3HQVLRQ3ODQV

6XEVWDQWLDOO\DOORIWKH3RUW¶VIXOOWLPHDQGTXDOLI\LQJSDUWWLPHHPSOR\HHVSDUWLFLSDWHLQRQHRI
WKHIROORZLQJVWDWHZLGHUHWLUHPHQWV\VWHPVDGPLQLVWHUHGE\WKH:DVKLQJWRQ6WDWH'HSDUWPHQWRI
5HWLUHPHQW6\VWHPVXQGHUFRVWVKDULQJPXOWLSOHHPSOR\HUSXEOLFHPSOR\HHGHILQHGEHQHILWDQG
GHILQHGFRQWULEXWLRQUHWLUHPHQWSODQV7KHVWDWH/HJLVODWXUHHVWDEOLVKHVDQGDPHQGVODZV
SHUWDLQLQJWRWKHFUHDWLRQDQGDGPLQLVWUDWLRQRIDOOSXEOLFUHWLUHPHQWV\VWHPV
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7KH'HSDUWPHQWRI5HWLUHPHQW6\VWHPV '56 DGHSDUWPHQWZLWKLQWKHSULPDU\JRYHUQPHQWRI
WKH6WDWHRI:DVKLQJWRQLVVXHVDSXEOLFO\DYDLODEOHFRPSUHKHQVLYHDQQXDOILQDQFLDOUHSRUW
&$)5 WKDWLQFOXGHVILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQGUHTXLUHGVXSSOHPHQWDU\LQIRUPDWLRQIRUHDFKSODQ
7KH'56&$)5PD\EHREWDLQHGE\ZULWLQJWR



'HSDUWPHQWRI5HWLUHPHQW6\VWHPV


&RPPXQLFDWLRQV8QLW


32%R[


2O\PSLD:$

2UWKH'56&$)5PD\EHGRZQORDGHGIURPWKH'56ZHEVLWHDWZZZGUVZDJRY

3XEOLF(PSOR\HHV¶5HWLUHPHQW6\VWHPV 3(56 

3(56PHPEHUVLQFOXGHHOHFWHGRIILFLDOVVWDWHHPSOR\HHVHPSOR\HHVRIWKH6XSUHPH$SSHDOV
DQG6XSHULRU&RXUWVHPSOR\HHVRIWKHOHJLVODWXUHHPSOR\HHVRIGLVWULFWDQGPXQLFLSDOFRXUWV
HPSOR\HHVRIORFDOJRYHUQPHQWVDQGKLJKHUHGXFDWLRQHPSOR\HHVQRWSDUWLFLSDWLQJLQKLJKHU
HGXFDWLRQUHWLUHPHQWSURJUDPV3(56LVFRPSULVHGRIWKUHHVHSDUDWHSHQVLRQSODQVIRUPHPEHU
VKLSSXUSRVHV3(56SODQVDQGDUHGHILQHGEHQHILWSODQVDQG3(56SODQLVDGHILQHG
EHQHILWSODQZLWKDGHILQHGFRQWULEXWLRQFRPSRQHQW

3(563ODQSURYLGHVUHWLUHPHQWGLVDELOLW\DQGGHDWKEHQHILWV5HWLUHPHQWEHQHILWVDUH
GHWHUPLQHGDVWZRSHUFHQWRIWKHPHPEHU¶VDYHUDJHILQDOFRPSHQVDWLRQ $)& WLPHVWKH
PHPEHU¶V\HDUVRIVHUYLFH7KH$)&LVWKHDYHUDJHRIWKHPHPEHU¶VKLJKHVWFRQVHFXWLYH
VHUYLFHPRQWKV0HPEHUVDUHHOLJLEOHIRUUHWLUHPHQWIURPDFWLYHVWDWXVDWDQ\DJHZLWKDWOHDVW
\HDUVRIVHUYLFHDWDJHZLWKDWOHDVW\HDUVRIVHUYLFHRUDWDJHZLWKDWOHDVWILYH\HDUVRI
VHUYLFH0HPEHUVUHWLULQJIURPDFWLYHVWDWXVSULRUWRWKHDJHRIPD\UHFHLYHDFWXDULDOO\
UHGXFHGEHQHILWV5HWLUHPHQWEHQHILWVDUHDFWXDULDOO\UHGXFHGWRUHIOHFWWKHFKRLFHRIDVXUYLYRU
EHQHILW2WKHUEHQHILWVLQFOXGHGXW\DQGQRQGXW\GLVDELOLW\SD\PHQWVDQRSWLRQDOFRVWRIOLYLQJ
DGMXVWPHQW &2/$ DQGDRQHWLPHGXW\UHODWHGGHDWKEHQHILWLIIRXQGHOLJLEOHE\WKH
'HSDUWPHQWRI/DERUDQG,QGXVWULHV3(56PHPEHUVZHUHYHVWHGDIWHUWKHFRPSOHWLRQRIILYH
\HDUVRIHOLJLEOHVHUYLFH7KHSODQZDVFORVHGWRQHZHQWUDQWVRQ6HSWHPEHU
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&RQWULEXWLRQV

7KH3(563ODQPHPEHUFRQWULEXWLRQUDWHLVHVWDEOLVKHGE\6WDWHVWDWXWHDWSHUFHQW7KH
HPSOR\HUFRQWULEXWLRQUDWHLVGHYHORSHGE\WKH2IILFHRIWKH6WDWH$FWXDU\DQGLQFOXGHVDQ
DGPLQLVWUDWLYHH[SHQVHFRPSRQHQWWKDWLVFXUUHQWO\VHWDWSHUFHQW(DFKELHQQLXPWKHVWDWH
3HQVLRQ)XQGLQJ&RXQFLODGRSWV3ODQHPSOR\HUFRQWULEXWLRQUDWHV7KH3(563ODQUHTXLUHG
FRQWULEXWLRQUDWHV H[SUHVVHGDVDSHUFHQWDJHRIFRYHUHGSD\UROO IRUZHUHDVIROORZV

3(563ODQ


$FWXDO&RQWULEXWLRQ5DWHV
(PSOR\HU
(PSOR\HH 
-DQXDU\-XQH


3(563ODQ


3(563ODQ8$$/


$GPLQLVWUDWLYH)HH


7RWDO


-XO\'HFHPEHU


3(563ODQ


3(563ODQ8$$/


$GPLQLVWUDWLYH)HH


7RWDO



3(563ODQSURYLGHVUHWLUHPHQWGLVDELOLW\DQGGHDWKEHQHILWV5HWLUHPHQWEHQHILWVDUH
GHWHUPLQHGDVWZRSHUFHQWRIWKHPHPEHU¶VDYHUDJHILQDOFRPSHQVDWLRQ $)& WLPHVWKH
PHPEHU¶V\HDUVRIVHUYLFHIRU3ODQDQGSHUFHQWRI$)&IRU3ODQ7KH$)&LVWKHDYHUDJHRI
WKHPHPEHU¶VKLJKHVWSDLGFRQVHFXWLYHVHUYLFHPRQWKV7KHUHLVQRFDSRQ\HDUVRIVHUYLFH
FUHGLW0HPEHUVDUHHOLJLEOHIRUUHWLUHPHQWZLWKDIXOOEHQHILWDWZLWKDWOHDVWILYH\HDUVRI
VHUYLFHFUHGLW5HWLUHPHQWEHIRUHDJHLVFRQVLGHUHGDQHDUO\UHWLUHPHQW3(563ODQ
PHPEHUVZKRKDYHDWOHDVW\HDUVRIVHUYLFHFUHGLWDQGDUH\HDUVRIDJHRUROGHUDUHHOLJLEOH
IRUHDUO\UHWLUHPHQWZLWKDEHQHILWWKDWLVUHGXFHGE\DIDFWRUWKDWYDULHVDFFRUGLQJWRDJHIRUHDFK
\HDUEHIRUHDJH3(563ODQPHPEHUVZKRKDYHRUPRUH\HDUVRIVHUYLFHFUHGLWDQGDUH
DWOHDVW\HDUVROGFDQUHWLUHXQGHURQHRIWZRSURYLVLRQV

x :LWKDEHQHILWWKDWLVUHGXFHGE\WKUHHSHUFHQWIRUHDFK\HDUEHIRUHDJHRU
x :LWKDEHQHILWWKDWKDVDVPDOOHU RUQR UHGXFWLRQ GHSHQGLQJRQDJH WKDWLPSRVHV
VWULFWHUUHWXUQWRZRUNUXOHV
3(563ODQPHPEHUVKLUHGRQRUDIWHU0D\KDYHWKHRSWLRQWRUHWLUHHDUO\E\
DFFHSWLQJDUHGXFWLRQRIILYHSHUFHQWIRUHDFK\HDURIUHWLUHPHQWEHIRUHDJH7KLVRSWLRQLV
DYDLODEOHRQO\WRWKRVHZKRDUHDJHRUROGHUDQGKDYHDWOHDVW\HDUVRIVHUYLFHFUHGLW3(56
3ODQUHWLUHPHQWEHQHILWVDUHDOVRDFWXDULDOO\UHGXFHGWRUHIOHFWWKHFKRLFHRIDVXUYLYRU
EHQHILW2WKHU3(563ODQEHQHILWVLQFOXGHGXW\DQGQRQGXW\GLVDELOLW\SD\PHQWVDFRVWRI
OLYLQJDOORZDQFH EDVHGRQWKH&3, FDSSHGDWWKUHHSHUFHQWDQQXDOO\DQGDRQHWLPHGXW\UHODWHG
GHDWKEHQHILWLIIRXQGHOLJLEOHE\WKH'HSDUWPHQWRI/DERUDQG,QGXVWULHV3(56PHPEHUVDUH
YHVWHGDIWHUFRPSOHWLQJILYH\HDUVRIHOLJLEOHVHUYLFH3ODQPHPEHUVDUHYHVWHGLQWKHGHILQHG
EHQHILWSRUWLRQRIWKHLUSODQDIWHUWHQ\HDUVRIVHUYLFHRUDIWHUILYH\HDUVRIVHUYLFHLIPRQWKV
RIWKDWVHUYLFHDUHHDUQHGDIWHUDJH
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3(563ODQGHILQHGFRQWULEXWLRQEHQHILWVDUHWRWDOO\GHSHQGHQWRQHPSOR\HHFRQWULEXWLRQVDQG
LQYHVWPHQWHDUQLQJVRQWKRVHFRQWULEXWLRQV3(563ODQPHPEHUVFKRRVHWKHLUFRQWULEXWLRQUDWH
XSRQMRLQLQJPHPEHUVKLSDQGKDYHDFKDQFHWRFKDQJHUDWHVXSRQFKDQJLQJHPSOR\HUV$V
HVWDEOLVKHGE\VWDWXWH3ODQUHTXLUHGGHILQHGFRQWULEXWLRQUDWHVDUHVHWDWDPLQLPXPRI
SHUFHQWDQGHVFDODWHWRSHUFHQWZLWKDFKRLFHRIVL[RSWLRQV(PSOR\HUVGRQRWFRQWULEXWHWR
WKHGHILQHGFRQWULEXWLRQEHQHILWV3(563ODQPHPEHUVDUHLPPHGLDWHO\YHVWHGLQWKHGHILQHG
FRQWULEXWLRQSRUWLRQRIWKHLUSODQ

&RQWULEXWLRQV

7KH3(563ODQHPSOR\HUDQGHPSOR\HHFRQWULEXWLRQUDWHVDUHGHYHORSHGE\WKH2IILFHRI
WKH6WDWH$FWXDU\WRIXOO\IXQG3ODQDQGWKHGHILQHGEHQHILWSRUWLRQRI3ODQ7KH3ODQ
HPSOR\HUUDWHVLQFOXGHDFRPSRQHQWWRDGGUHVVWKH3(563ODQ8$$/DQGDQDGPLQLVWUDWLYH
H[SHQVHWKDWLVFXUUHQWO\VHWDWSHUFHQW(DFKELHQQLXPWKHVWDWH3HQVLRQ)XQGLQJ&RXQFLO
DGRSWV3ODQHPSOR\HUDQGHPSOR\HHFRQWULEXWLRQUDWHVDQG3ODQFRQWULEXWLRQUDWHV7KH3(56
3ODQUHTXLUHGFRQWULEXWLRQUDWHV H[SUHVVHGDVDSHUFHQWDJHRIFRYHUHGSD\UROO IRUZHUH
DVIROORZV

3(563ODQ


$FWXDO&RQWULEXWLRQ5DWHV (PSOR\HU
(PSOR\HH 
-DQXDU\±-XQH


3(563ODQ


3(563ODQ8$$/


$GPLQLVWUDWLYH)HH


(PSOR\HH3(563ODQ

YDULHV
7RWDO


-XO\±'HFHPEHU


3(563ODQ


3(563ODQ8$$/


$GPLQLVWUDWLYH)HH


(PSOR\HH3(563ODQ

9DULHV
7RWDO



7KH3RUW¶VDFWXDO3(56SODQFRQWULEXWLRQVZHUHWR3(563ODQDQGWR3(56
3ODQIRUWKH\HDUHQGHG'HFHPEHU

$FWXDULDO$VVXPSWLRQV

7KHWRWDOSHQVLRQOLDELOLW\ 73/ IRUHDFKRIWKH'56SODQVZDVGHWHUPLQHGXVLQJWKHPRVWUHFHQW
DFWXDULDOYDOXDWLRQFRPSOHWHGLQZLWKDYDOXDWLRQGDWHRI-XQH7KHDFWXDULDO
DVVXPSWLRQVXVHGLQWKHYDOXDWLRQZHUHEDVHGRQWKHUHVXOWVRIWKH2IILFHRIWKH6WDWH$FWXDU\¶V
26$ 2007-2012 Experience StudyDQGWKH2015 Economic Experience Study

$GGLWLRQDODVVXPSWLRQVIRUVXEVHTXHQWHYHQWVDQGODZFKDQJHVDUHFXUUHQWDVRIWKH
DFWXDULDOYDOXDWLRQUHSRUW7KH73/ZDVFDOFXODWHGDVRIWKHYDOXDWLRQGDWHDQGUROOHGIRUZDUGWR
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WKHPHDVXUHPHQWGDWHRI-XQH3ODQOLDELOLWLHVZHUHUROOHGIRUZDUGIURP-XQH
WR-XQHUHIOHFWLQJHDFKSODQ¶VQRUPDOFRVW XVLQJWKHHQWU\DJHFRVWPHWKRG DVVXPHG
LQWHUHVWDQGDFWXDOEHQHILWSD\PHQWV

x ,QIODWLRQWRWDOHFRQRPLFLQIODWLRQVDODU\LQIODWLRQ
x 6DODU\LQFUHDVHV,QDGGLWLRQWRWKHEDVHVDODU\LQIODWLRQDVVXPSWLRQVDODULHVDUHDOVR
H[SHFWHGWRJURZE\SURPRWLRQVDQGORQJHYLW\
x ,QYHVWPHQWUDWHRIUHWXUQ

0RUWDOLW\UDWHVZHUHEDVHGRQWKH53UHSRUW¶V&RPELQHG+HDOWK\7DEOHDQG&RPELQHG
'LVDEOHG7DEOHSXEOLVKHGE\WKH6RFLHW\RI$FWXDULHV7KH26$DSSOLHGRIIVHWVWRWKHEDVHWDEOH
DQGUHFRJQL]HGIXWXUHLPSURYHPHQWVLQPRUWDOLW\E\SURMHFWLQJWKHPRUWDOLW\UDWHVXVLQJ
SHUFHQW6FDOH%%0RUWDOLW\UDWHVDUHDSSOLHGRQDJHQHUDWLRQDOEDVLVPHDQLQJHDFKPHPEHULV
DVVXPHGWRUHFHLYHDGGLWLRQDOPRUWDOLW\LPSURYHPHQWVLQHDFKIXWXUH\HDUWKURXJKRXWKLVRUKHU
OLIHWLPH

7KHUHZHUHFKDQJHVLQPHWKRGVDQGDVVXPSWLRQVVLQFHWKHODVWYDOXDWLRQ

x )RUDOOSODQVH[FHSW/(2))3ODQKRZWHUPLQDWHGDQGYHVWHGPHPEHUEHQHILWVDUHYDOXHG
ZDVFRUUHFWHG
x +RZWKHEDVLFPLQLPXP&2/$LQ3(563ODQLVYDOXHGIRUOHJDORUGHUSD\HHVZDV
LPSURYHG
x )RUDOOSODQVWKHDYHUDJHH[SHFWHGUHPDLQLQJVHUYLFHOLYHVFDOFXODWLRQZDVUHYLVHG
'LVFRXQW5DWH

7KHGLVFRXQWUDWHXVHGWRPHDVXUHWKHWRWDOSHQVLRQOLDELOLW\IRUDOO'56SODQVZDVSHUFHQW

7RGHWHUPLQHWKDWUDWHDQDVVHWVXIILFLHQF\WHVWLQFOXGHGDQDVVXPHGSHUFHQWORQJWHUP
GLVFRXQWUDWHWRGHWHUPLQHIXQGLQJOLDELOLWLHVIRUFDOFXODWLQJIXWXUHFRQWULEXWLRQUDWHUHTXLUH
PHQWV $OOSODQVXVHSHUFHQWH[FHSW/(2))ZKLFKKDVDVVXPHGSHUFHQW &RQVLVWHQW
ZLWKWKHORQJWHUPH[SHFWHGUDWHRIUHWXUQDSHUFHQWIXWXUHLQYHVWPHQWUDWHRIUHWXUQRQ
LQYHVWHGDVVHWVZDVDVVXPHGIRUWKHWHVW&RQWULEXWLRQVIURPSODQPHPEHUVDQGHPSOR\HUVDUH
DVVXPHGWRFRQWLQXHEHLQJPDGHDWFRQWUDFWXDOO\UHTXLUHGUDWHV LQFOXGLQJ3(56ZKRVHUDWHV
LQFOXGHDFRPSRQHQWIRUWKH3(56SODQOLDELOLWLHV %DVHGRQWKHVHDVVXPSWLRQVWKHSHQVLRQ
SODQV¶ILGXFLDU\QHWSRVLWLRQZDVSURMHFWHGWREHDYDLODEOHWRPDNHDOOSURMHFWHGIXWXUHEHQHILW
SD\PHQWVRIFXUUHQWSODQPHPEHUV7KHUHIRUHWKHORQJWHUPH[SHFWHGUDWHRIUHWXUQRI
SHUFHQWZDVXVHGWRGHWHUPLQHWKHWRWDOOLDELOLW\

/RQJ7HUP([SHFWHG5DWHRI5HWXUQ

7KHORQJWHUPH[SHFWHGUDWHRIUHWXUQRQWKH'56SHQVLRQSODQLQYHVWPHQWVRISHUFHQWZDV
GHWHUPLQHGXVLQJDEXLOGLQJEORFNPHWKRG,QVHOHFWLQJWKLVDVVXPSWLRQWKH2IILFHRIWKH6WDWH
$FWXDU\ 26$ UHYLHZHGWKHKLVWRULFDOH[SHULHQFHGDWDFRQVLGHUHGWKHKLVWRULFDOFRQGLWLRQVWKDW
SURGXFHGSDVWDQQXDOLQYHVWPHQWUHWXUQVDQGFRQVLGHUHGFDSLWDOPDUNHWDVVXPSWLRQVDQG
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VLPXODWHGH[SHFWHGLQYHVWPHQWUHWXUQVSURYLGHGE\WKH:DVKLQJWRQ6WDWH,QYHVWPHQW%RDUG
:6,% 7KH:6,%XVHVWKHFDSLWDOPDUNHWDVVXPSWLRQVDQGWKHLUWDUJHWDVVHWDOORFDWLRQWR
VLPXODWHIXWXUHLQYHVWPHQWUHWXUQVRYHUYDULRXVWLPHKRUL]RQV

(VWLPDWHG5DWHVRI5HWXUQE\$VVHW&ODVV

%HVWHVWLPDWHVRIDULWKPHWLFUHDOUDWHVRIUHWXUQIRUHDFKPDMRUDVVHWFODVVLQFOXGHGLQWKHSHQVLRQ
SODQ¶VWDUJHWDVVHWDOORFDWLRQDVRI-XQHDUHVXPPDUL]HGLQWKHWDEOHEHORZ7KH
LQIODWLRQFRPSRQHQWXVHGWRFUHDWHWKHWDEOHLVSHUFHQWDQGUHSUHVHQWVWKH:6,%¶VPRVWUHFHQW
ORQJWHUPHVWLPDWHRIEURDGHFRQRPLFLQIODWLRQ



/RQJ7HUP
$VVHW&ODVV
7DUJHW
([SHFWHG5HDO5DWHRI
$OORFDWLRQ
5HWXUQ$ULWKPHWLF
)L[HG,QFRPH


7DQJLEOH$VVHWV


5HDO(VWDWH


*OREDO(TXLW\


3ULYDWH(TXLW\



 

6HQVLWLYLW\RIWKH1HW3HQVLRQ/LDELOLW\ $VVHW 

7KHWDEOHEHORZSUHVHQWVWKH3RUW¶VSURSRUWLRQDWHVKDUHRIWKHQHWSHQVLRQOLDELOLW\FDOFXODWHG
XVLQJWKHGLVFRXQWUDWHRISHUFHQWDVZHOODVZKDWWKH3RUW¶VSURSRUWLRQDWHVKDUHRIWKHQHW
SHQVLRQOLDELOLW\ZRXOGEHLILWZHUHFDOFXODWHGXVLQJDGLVFRXQWUDWHWKDWLVSHUFHQWDJHSRLQW
ORZHU SHUFHQW RUSHUFHQWDJHSRLQWKLJKHU SHUFHQW WKDQWKHFXUUHQWUDWH

'HFUHDVH
&XUUHQW
,QFUHDVH

 
'LVFRXQW5DWH
 
 
3(56



3(56


  

3HQVLRQ3ODQ)LGXFLDU\1HW3RVLWLRQ

'HWDLOHGLQIRUPDWLRQDERXWWKH6WDWH¶VSHQVLRQSODQV¶ILGXFLDU\QHWSRVLWLRQLVDYDLODEOHLQWKH
VHSDUDWHO\LVVXHG'56ILQDQFLDOUHSRUW
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3HQVLRQ/LDELOLWLHV $VVHWV 3HQVLRQ([SHQVHDQG'HIHUUHG2XWIORZVRI5HVRXUFHVDQG
'HIHUUHG,QIORZVRI5HVRXUFHV5HODWHGWR3HQVLRQV

$W-XQHWKH3RUWUHSRUWHGDWRWDOSHQVLRQOLDELOLW\RIIRULWVSURSRUWLRQDWH
VKDUHRIWKHQHWSHQVLRQOLDELOLWLHVDVIROORZV


/LDELOLW\ RU$VVHW 
3(56

3(56


$W-XQHWKH3RUW¶VSURSRUWLRQDWHVKDUHRIWKHFROOHFWLYHQHWSHQVLRQOLDELOLWLHVZDVDVIROORZV


3URSRUWLRQDWH 3URSRUWLRQDWH &KDQJHLQ
6KDUH 6KDUH 3URSRUWLRQ
3(56



3(56




(PSOR\HUFRQWULEXWLRQWUDQVPLWWDOVUHFHLYHGDQGSURFHVVHGE\WKH'56IRUWKHILVFDO\HDUHQGHG
-XQHDUHXVHGDVWKHEDVLVIRUGHWHUPLQLQJHDFKHPSOR\HU¶VSURSRUWLRQDWHVKDUHRIWKH
FROOHFWLYHSHQVLRQDPRXQWVUHSRUWHGE\WKH'56LQWKHSchedules of Employer and Nonemployer
AllocationsIRUDOOSODQVH[FHSW/(2))

7KHFROOHFWLYHQHWSHQVLRQOLDELOLW\ DVVHW ZDVPHDVXUHGDVRI-XQHDQGWKHDFWXDULDO
YDOXDWLRQGDWHRQZKLFKWKHWRWDOSHQVLRQOLDELOLW\ DVVHW LVEDVHGZDVDVRI-XQHZLWK
XSGDWHSURFHGXUHVXVHGWRUROOIRUZDUGWKHWRWDOSHQVLRQOLDELOLW\WRWKHPHDVXUHPHQWGDWH

3HQVLRQ([SHQVH

)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG'HFHPEHUWKH3RUWUHFRJQL]HGSHQVLRQH[SHQVHDVIROORZV


3HQVLRQ([SHQVH
3(56
  
3(56

727$/
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'HIHUUHG2XWIORZVRI5HVRXUFHVDQG'HIHUUHG,QIORZVRI5HVRXUFHV

$W'HFHPEHUWKH3RUWUHSRUWHGGHIHUUHGRXWIORZVRIUHVRXUFHVDQGGHIHUUHGLQIORZVRI
UHVRXUFHVUHODWHGWRSHQVLRQVIURPWKHIROORZLQJVRXUFHV


'HIHUUHG
'HIHUUHG,QIORZV

2XWIORZVRI
RI5HVRXUFHV
3(563ODQ
5HVRXUFHV
'LIIHUHQFHVEHWZHHQH[SHFWHGDQGDFWXDO


H[SHULHQFH
1HWGLIIHUHQFHEHWZHHQSURMHFWHGDQGDFWXDO

  
LQYHVWPHQWHDUQLQJVRQSHQVLRQSODQ
LQYHVWPHQWV
&KDQJHVRIDVVXPSWLRQV


&KDQJHVLQSURSRUWLRQDQGGLIIHUHQFHV


EHWZHHQFRQWULEXWLRQVDQGSURSRUWLRQDWHVKDUH
RIFRQWULEXWLRQV
&RQWULEXWLRQVVXEVHTXHQWWRWKHPHDVXUHPHQW


GDWH
727$/

  

'HIHUUHG
'HIHUUHG,QIORZV

2XWIORZVRI
RI5HVRXUFHV

5HVRXUFHV
3(563ODQ 
'LIIHUHQFHVEHWZHHQH[SHFWHGDQGDFWXDO

  
H[SHULHQFH
1HWGLIIHUHQFHEHWZHHQSURMHFWHGDQGDFWXDO

  
LQYHVWPHQWHDUQLQJVRQSHQVLRQSODQ
LQYHVWPHQWV
&KDQJHVRIDVVXPSWLRQV


&KDQJHVLQSURSRUWLRQDQGGLIIHUHQFHV

  
EHWZHHQFRQWULEXWLRQVDQGSURSRUWLRQDWHVKDUH
RIFRQWULEXWLRQV
&RQWULEXWLRQVVXEVHTXHQWWRWKHPHDVXUHPHQW


GDWH
727$/
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$OO3ODQVLQ7RWDO
'LIIHUHQFHVEHWZHHQH[SHFWHGDQGDFWXDO
H[SHULHQFH
1HWGLIIHUHQFHEHWZHHQSURMHFWHGDQGDFWXDO
LQYHVWPHQWHDUQLQJVRQSHQVLRQSODQ
LQYHVWPHQWV
&KDQJHVRIDVVXPSWLRQV
&KDQJHVLQSURSRUWLRQDQGGLIIHUHQFHV
EHWZHHQFRQWULEXWLRQVDQGSURSRUWLRQDWHVKDUH
RIFRQWULEXWLRQV
&RQWULEXWLRQVVXEVHTXHQWWRWKHPHDVXUHPHQW
GDWH
727$/

'HIHUUHG
'HIHUUHG,QIORZV
2XWIORZVRI
RI5HVRXUFHV
5HVRXUFHV

  


  





  







  


'HIHUUHGRXWIORZVRIUHVRXUFHVUHODWHGWRSHQVLRQVUHVXOWLQJIURPWKH3RUW¶VFRQWULEXWLRQV
VXEVHTXHQWWRWKHPHDVXUHPHQWGDWHZLOOEHUHFRJQL]HGDVDUHGXFWLRQRIWKHQHWSHQVLRQOLDELOLW\
LQWKH\HDUHQGHG'HFHPEHU2WKHUDPRXQWVUHSRUWHGDVGHIHUUHGRXWIORZVDQGGHIHUUHG
LQIORZVRIUHVRXUFHVUHODWHGWRSHQVLRQVZLOOEHUHFRJQL]HGLQSHQVLRQH[SHQVHDVIROORZV

<HDUHQGHG

'HFHPEHU
3(563ODQ

  



 

 


7KHUHDIWHU

7RWDO
  

<HDUHQGHG

3(563ODQV 
'HFHPEHU

  



 

 


7KHUHDIWHU

7RWDO


127(±27+(53267(03/2<0(17%(1(),7 23(% 3/$16

,Q-XQHWKH*RYHUQPHQWDO$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV%RDUGLVVXHG*$6%6WDWHPHQW1R
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions7KH3RUWDGRSWHGWKLVVWDQGDUGLQ
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$VSHUWKH*$6%6WDWHPHQW1R6XPPDU\³,QDGGLWLRQWRSHQVLRQVPDQ\VWDWHDQGORFDO
JRYHUQPHQWDOHPSOR\HUVSURYLGHRWKHUSRVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV 23(% DVSDUWRIWKHWRWDO
FRPSHQVDWLRQRIIHUHGWRDWWUDFWDQGUHWDLQWKHVHUYLFHVRITXDOLILHGHPSOR\HHV23(%LQFOXGHV
SRVWHPSOR\PHQWKHDOWKFDUHDVZHOODVRWKHUIRUPVRISRVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV IRUH[DPSOHOLIH
LQVXUDQFH ZKHQSURYLGHGVHSDUDWHO\IURPDSHQVLRQSODQ7KLV6WDWHPHQWHVWDEOLVKHVVWDQGDUGV
IRUWKHPHDVXUHPHQWUHFRJQLWLRQDQGGLVSOD\RI23(%H[SHQVHVH[SHQGLWXUHVDQGUHODWHG
OLDELOLWLHV DVVHWV QRWHGLVFORVXUHVDQGLIDSSOLFDEOHUHTXLUHGVXSSOHPHQWDU\LQIRUPDWLRQ 56, 
LQWKHILQDQFLDOUHSRUWVRIVWDWHDQGORFDOJRYHUQPHQWDOHPSOR\HUV´

$
3ODQ'HVFULSWLRQ

7KH3RUWRI(GPRQGVSURYLGHVPHGLFDOGHQWDOOLIHDQGORQJWHUPGLVDELOLW\LQVXUDQFHWRLWV
HPSOR\HHVDQG&RPPLVVLRQHUVWKURXJKWKH:DVKLQJWRQ6WDWH3XEOLF(PSOR\HHV%HQHILW%RDUG
3(%% 3RUWHPSOR\HHVZKRHQGSXEOLFHPSOR\PHQWDUHHOLJLEOHWRFRQWLQXH3(%%LQVXUDQFH
FRYHUDJHDVDUHWLUHHLIWKH\UHWLUHXQGHUWKHSXEOLFHPSOR\HHV¶UHWLUHPHQWV\VWHPDQGDUHYHVWHG
LQWKDWV\VWHP

2WKHUSRVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV 23(% DUHEHQHILWVSURYLGHGWRUHWLUHGHPSOR\HHVEH\RQG
WKRVHSURYLGHGE\WKHLUSHQVLRQSODQV6XFKEHQHILWVLQFOXGHPHGLFDOSUHVFULSWLRQGUXJOLIH
GHQWDODQGYLVLRQLQVXUDQFH3(%%RIIHUVUHWLUHHVDFFHVVWRDOORIWKHVHEHQHILWVDQG3(%%
HPSOR\HUVSURYLGHPRQHWDU\DVVLVWDQFHRUVXEVLGLHVWKHVHEHQHILWV

7KH23(%UHODWLRQVKLSEHWZHHQ3(%%HPSOR\HUVDQGWKHLUHPSOR\HHVDQGUHWLUHHVLVQRW
IRUPDOL]HGLQDFRQWUDFWRUSODQGRFXPHQW5DWKHUWKHEHQHILWVDUHSURYLGHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKD
VXEVWDQWLYHSODQ$VXEVWDQWLYHSODQLVRQHLQZKLFKWKHSODQWHUPVDUHXQGHUVWRRGE\WKH
HPSOR\HUVDQGSODQPHPEHUV7KLVXQGHUVWDQGLQJLVEDVHGRQFRPPXQLFDWLRQVEHWZHHQWKH
HPSOR\HUVDQGSODQPHPEHUVDQGWKHKLVWRULFDOSDWWHUQRISUDFWLFHZLWKUHJDUGWRWKHVKDULQJRI
EHQHILWFRVWV

7KH2IILFHRIWKH6WDWH$FWXDU\DGHSDUWPHQWZLWKLQWKHSULPDU\JRYHUQPHQWRIWKH6WDWHRI
:DVKLQJWRQLVVXHVDSXEOLFO\DYDLODEOH2WKHU3RVW(PSOR\PHQW%HQHILWV$FWXDULDO9DOXDWLRQ
5HSRUW7KH2WKHU3RVW(PSOR\PHQW%HQHILWV$FWXDULDO9DOXDWLRQ5HSRUWPD\EHREWDLQHGE\
ZULWLQJWR2IILFHRIWKH6WDWH$FWXDU\32%R[2O\PSLD:DVKLQJWRQRULW
PD\EHGRZQORDGHGIURPWKH2IILFHRIWKH6WDWH$FWXDU\ZHEVLWHDWKWWSRVDOHJZDJRY

%
6XEVLGLHV

7KH:DVKLQJWRQ6WDWH+HDOWK&DUH$XWKRULW\ +&$ DGPLQLVWHUV3(%%SODQEHQHILWV)RU
PHGLFDOLQVXUDQFHFRYHUDJHWKH+&$KDVWZRFODLPVSRROVRQHFRYHULQJHPSOR\HHVDQGQRQ
0HGLFDUHHOLJLEOHUHWLUHHVDQGWKHRWKHUFRYHULQJUHWLUHHVHQUROOHGLQ0HGLFDUH3DUWV$DQG%
(DFKSDUWLFLSDWLQJHPSOR\HUSD\VDSRUWLRQRIWKHSUHPLXPVIRUDFWLYHHPSOR\HHV)RUUHWLUHHV
SDUWLFLSDWLQJHPSOR\HUVSURYLGHWZRGLIIHUHQWVXEVLGLHVDQH[SOLFLWVXEVLG\DQGDQLPSOLFLW
VXEVLG\

7KHH[SOLFLWVXEVLG\SHUPLWWHGXQGHU5&:LVDVWUDLJKWIRUZDUGVHWGROODUDPRXQWIRU
DVSHFLILFJURXSRISHRSOH7KHH[SOLFLWVXEVLG\ORZHUVWKHPRQWKO\SUHPLXPSDLGE\UHWLUHG
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PHPEHUVHQUROOHGLQ0HGLFDUH3DUWV$DQG%3(%%GHWHUPLQHVWKHDPRXQWRIWKHH[SOLFLW
VXEVLG\DQQXDOO\

7KHLPSOLFLWVXEVLG\VHWXSXQGHU5&:LVPRUHFRPSOH[EHFDXVHLWLVQRWDGLUHFW
SD\PHQWIURPWKHHPSOR\HURQEHKDOIRIWKHPHPEHU6LQFHFODLPVH[SHULHQFHIRUHPSOR\HHV
DQGQRQ0HGLFDUHHOLJLEOHUHWLUHHVDUHSRROHGZKHQGHWHUPLQLQJSUHPLXPVWKHVHUHWLUHG
PHPEHUVSD\DSUHPLXPEDVHGRQDSRRORIPHPEHUVWKDWRQDYHUDJHDUH\RXQJHUDQGKHDOWKLHU
7KHUHLVDQLPSOLFLWVXEVLG\IURPWKHHPSOR\HHJURXSVLQFHWKHSUHPLXPVSDLGE\WKHUHWLUHHVDUH
ORZHUWKDQWKH\ZRXOGKDYHEHHQLIWKHUHWLUHHVZHUHLQVXUHGVHSDUDWHO\7KHVXEVLGLHVDUHYDOXHG
XVLQJWKHGLIIHUHQFHEHWZHHQWKHDJHEDVHGFODLPVFRVWVDQGWKHSUHPLXPSDLGE\WKHUHWLUHHV

3(%%KDVDOVRKLVWRULFDOO\SURYLGHGVXEVLGL]HGEDVLFOLIHLQVXUDQFH 3ODQ$ FRYHUDJHWRUHWLUHHV
7KLVZDVDQH[SOLFLWOLIHLQVXUDQFHVXEVLG\VHWXSE\WKH3(%%%RDUGDQGDSSURYHGDVSDUWRIWKH
EXGJHWSURFHVV+RZHYHUEHJLQQLQJ-DQXDU\WKH3(%%%RDUGHOLPLQDWHGWKHH[SOLFLW
OLIHLQVXUDQFHVXEVLG\RQDSHUPDQHQWEDVLV

%HIRUHWKHVHVXEVLGLHVZHUHQRWSURMHFWHGDQGDFFRXQWHGIRUXQGHUDFFUXDOEDVLV
DFFRXQWLQJ$FFUXDODFFRXQWLQJLVPHDQWWRPDWFKWKHWLPLQJEHWZHHQZKHQVRPHWKLQJRFFXUV
DQGZKHQLWLVDFFRXQWHGIRU,QWKLVFDVHLWLVPHDQWWRPDWFKWKHH[SHQVHWRWKH\HDULQZKLFK
WKHEHQHILWVDUHHDUQHGE\WKHPHPEHU

&
)XQGLQJ3ROLF\

3D\DV\RXJRIXQGLQJRFFXUVZKHQDQHPSOR\HUFKRRVHVWRFRQWULEXWH SD\ IRUEHQHILWVRQO\
ZKHQWKH\RFFXURUEHFRPHGXH DIWHUUHWLUHPHQW %HIRUHWKLVFRVWZDVH[SHQVHGDVWKH
3RUWSDLGWKHFXUUHQW\HDU VVXEVLGLHV+RZHYHUWKHXQIXQGHGOLDELOLW\ZKLFKLVWKHGLIIHUHQFH
EHWZHHQZKDWWKH3RUWDFFUXHV DVVXPLQJRQJRLQJIXWXUHSD\PHQWV DQGZKDWWKH3RUWFXUUHQWO\
SD\VZDVJURZLQJDQGZDVQRWDFFRXQWHGIRUXQGHUWKHSD\DV\RXJRPHWKRG

*$6%6WDWHPHQW1RZDVFUHDWHGLQDQDWWHPSWWR

x &UHDWHILQDQFLDOWUDQVSDUHQF\
x &UHDWHEHWWHUDOLJQPHQWEHWZHHQSXEOLFDQGSULYDWHVHFWRUDFFRXQWLQJ
x 3URYLGHFODULW\DPRQJEDUJDLQLQJJURXSVWRVKRZWKHWUXHFRVWRIEHQHILWVRYHUWLPH
x 3URYLGHHPSOR\HUVNQRZOHGJHRIWKHWUXHFRVWRIEHQHILWVRYHUWLPH
x 3URYLGHLQYHVWRUVNQRZOHGJHRIWKHWUXHORQJWHUPOLDELOLWLHV
x 6KRZWKHGHFLVLRQPDNHUVDFRVWWKDWWKH\QHHGWRUHFRJQL]H

7KH3RUWIXQGVWKHLPSOLFLWDQGH[SOLFLWVXEVLGLHVRQDSD\DV\RXJREDVLVPHDQLQJWKDW3RUW
SD\VWKHVHFRVWVDVWKH\RFFXURUEHFRPHGXH

'
$QQXDO23(%&RVWDQG1HW23(%2EOLJDWLRQ

7KH3RUW¶VDQQXDORWKHUSRVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILW 23(% FRVWLVFDOFXODWHGEDVHGXSRQWKH
DQQXDOUHTXLUHGFRQWULEXWLRQ $5& DQDPRXQWDFWXDULDOO\GHWHUPLQHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKH
SDUDPHWHUVRI*$6%6WDWHPHQW1R7KH$5&UHSUHVHQWVDOHYHORIIXQGLQJWKDWLISDLGRQDQ
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RQJRLQJEDVLVLVSURMHFWHGWRFRYHUWKHQRUPDOFRVWHDFK\HDUDQGDPRUWL]HDQ\XQIXQGHG
DFWXDULDOOLDELOLWLHVRYHUDSHULRGRIWKLUW\\HDUVDVRI-DQXDU\7KHIROORZLQJWDEOHVKRZV
WKHFRPSRQHQWVRIWKH3RUW¶VDQQXDO23(%FRVWIRUWKH\HDUWKHDPRXQWDFWXDOO\FRQWULEXWHGWR
WKHSODQDQGFKDQJHVLQWKH3RUW¶VQHW23(%7KHQHW23(%REOLJDWLRQRILVLQFOXGHG
DVDQRQFXUUHQWOLDELOLW\LQWKH6WDWHPHQWRI1HW3RVLWLRQ

)LVFDO<HDU(QGLQJ )LVFDO<HDU(QGLQJ )LVFDO<HDU(QGLQJ



'HWHUPLQDWLRQRI$QQXDO5HTXLUHG&RQWULEXWLRQ
1RUPDO&RVWDW<HDU(QG
$PRUWL]DWLRQRI8QIXQGHG$FWXDULDO$FFUXHG/LDELOLW\
$QQXDO5HTXLUHG&RQWULEXWLRQ

  
  
  

'HWHUPLQDWLRQRI$QQXDO23(%&RVW
$QQXDO5HTXLUHG&RQWULEXWLRQ
1HW23(%2EOLJDWLRQ,QWHUHVW
1HW23(%2EOLJDWLRQ$PRUWL]DWRQ
$QQXDO23(%&RVW



 




 




 


'HWHUPLQDWLRQRI1HW23(%2EOLJDWLRQ
6WDUWLQJ1HW23(%2EOLJDWLRQ
$QQXDO23(%&RVW
&RQWULEXWLRQV
1HW23(%2EOLJDWLRQ



 




 




 


7KH3RUW¶V23(%FRVWWKHSHUFHQWDJHRI23(%FRVWFRQWULEXWHGWRWKHSODQDQGWKHQHW23(%
REOLJDWLRQIRUDQGZHUHDVIROORZV

)LVFDO<HDU
$QQXDO23(%
&RQWULEXWLRQDVD
1HW23(%
(QGHG
&RVW
3HUFHQWDJHRI23(%&RVW
2EOLJDWLRQ











 





(
)XQGHG6WDWXVDQG)XQGLQJ3URJUHVV

,QRUGHUWRIXQGWKH23(%SODQWKH3RUWZRXOGKDYHWRHVWDEOLVKDQLUUHYRFDEOHWUXVWZKLFK
PHDQVWKDWWKH3RUWZRXOGQRORQJHUKDYHFRQWURORIWKHPRQH\SXWLQWRWKHWUXVW(YHQLIWKH3RUW
OHIWWKH3(%%SURJUDPWKH3RUWZRXOGQRWEHDEOHWRJHWWKHPRQH\RXWRIWKHWUXVW$VRI
'HFHPEHUWKHSODQZDVIXQGHG

$FWXDULDOYDOXDWLRQVLQYROYHHVWLPDWHVRIWKHYDOXHRIUHSRUWHGDPRXQWVDQGDVVXPSWLRQVDERXW
WKHSUREDELOLW\RIRFFXUUHQFHRIHYHQWVIDULQWRWKHIXWXUH([DPSOHVLQFOXGHDVVXPSWLRQVDERXW
IXWXUHHPSOR\PHQWPRUWDOLW\DQGWKHKHDOWKFDUHFRVWWUHQG$PRXQWVGHWHUPLQHGUHJDUGLQJWKH
IXQGHGVWDWXVRIWKHSODQDQGWKHDQQXDOUHTXLUHGFRQWULEXWLRQVRIWKHHPSOR\HUDUHVXEMHFWWR
FRQWLQXDOUHYLVLRQDVDFWXDOUHVXOWVDUHFRPSDUHGZLWKSDVWH[SHFWDWLRQVDQGQHZHVWLPDWHVDUH
PDGHDERXWWKHIXWXUH7KHVFKHGXOHRIIXQGLQJSURJUHVVSUHVHQWHGDVUHTXLUHGVXSSOHPHQWDU\
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LQIRUPDWLRQIROORZLQJWKHQRWHVWRWKHILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVSUHVHQWVPXOWL\HDUWUHQGLQIRUPDWLRQ
WKDWZLOOVKRZZKHWKHUWKHDFWXDULDOYDOXHRISODQDVVHWVLVLQFUHDVLQJRUGHFUHDVLQJRYHUWLPH
UHODWLYHWRWKHDFWXDULDOOLDELOLW\IRUEHQHILWV

)
$FWXDULDO0HWKRGVDQG$VVXPSWLRQV

7KH3RUWXVHGWKHDOWHUQDWLYHPHDVXUHPHQWPHWKRGSHUPLWWHGXQGHU*$6%6WDWHPHQW1R$
VLQJOHUHWLUHPHQWDJHRIZDVDVVXPHGIRUDOODFWLYHPHPEHUVWRGHWHUPLQHWKH$FWXDULDO
$FFUXHG/LDELOLW\DQGQRUPDOFRVW5HWLUHPHQWGLVDEOHPHQWWHUPLQDWLRQDQGPRUWDOLW\UDWHV
ZHUHDVVXPHGWRIROORZWKH3(56UDWHVXVHGLQWKH-XQHDFWXDULDOYDOXDWLRQUHSRUW
LVVXHGE\WKH2IILFHRIWKH6WDWH$FWXDU\+HDOWKFDUHFRVWVDQGWUHQGVZHUHGHWHUPLQHGE\
0LOOLPDQDQGXVHGE\WKH2IILFHRIWKH6WDWH$FWXDU\LQWKHVWDWHZLGH3(%%VWXG\SHUIRUPHGLQ
7KHUHVXOWVZHUHEDVHGRQJURXSHGGDWDZLWKIRXUDFWLYHJURXSLQJVDQGIRXULQDFWLYH
JURXSLQJV7KHDFWXDULDOFRVWPHWKRGXVHGWRGHWHUPLQHWKH$FWXDULDO$FFUXHG/LDELOLW\ZDV
3URMHFWHG8QLW&UHGLW7KH$FWXDULDO$FFUXHG/LDELOLW\DQGWKH1HW23(%2EOLJDWLRQVDUH
DPRUWL]HGRQDQRSHQEDVLVDVDOHYHOGROODURYHU\HDUV7KHVHDVVXPSWLRQVDUHLQGLYLGXDOO\
DQGFROOHFWLYHO\UHDVRQDEOHIRUWKHSXUSRVHVRIWKLVYDOXDWLRQ

127(±5,6.0$1$*(0(17

7KH3RUWLVDPHPEHURI(QGXULV&KDSWHU5&:SURYLGHVWKHH[FOXVLYHVRXUFHRIORFDO
JRYHUQPHQWHQWLW\DXWKRULW\WRLQGLYLGXDOO\RUMRLQWO\VHOILQVXUHULVNVMRLQWO\SXUFKDVHLQVXUDQFH
RUUHLQVXUDQFHDQGWRFRQWUDFWIRUULVNPDQDJHPHQWFODLPVDQGDGPLQLVWUDWLYHVHUYLFHV(QGXULV
ZDVIRUPHG-XO\SXUVXDQWWRWKHSURYLVLRQVRI&KDSWHU5&:&KDSWHU
:$&DQG&KDSWHU5&:7ZR  FRXQWLHVDQGWZR  FLWLHVLQWKH6WDWHRI:DVKLQJWRQ
MRLQHGWRJHWKHUE\VLJQLQJDQLQWHUORFDOJRYHUQPHQWDODJUHHPHQWWRIXQGWKHLUVHOILQVXUHGORVVHV
DQGMRLQWO\SXUFKDVHLQVXUDQFHDQGDGPLQLVWUDWLYHVHUYLFHV$VRI$XJXVWWKHUHZHUH
(QGXULVPHPEHUVUHSUHVHQWLQJDEURDGDUUD\RIVSHFLDOSXUSRVHGLVWULFWVWKURXJKRXWWKHVWDWH
(QGXULVSURYLGHVSURSHUW\DQGOLDELOLW\FRYHUDJHDVZHOODVULVNPDQDJHPHQWVHUYLFHVDQGRWKHU
UHODWHGDGPLQLVWUDWLYHVHUYLFHV

0HPEHUVPDNHDQDQQXDOFRQWULEXWLRQWRIXQG(QGXULVDQGVKDUHLQWKHVHOILQVXUHGUHWHQWLRQRI
WKHMRLQWO\SXUFKDVHGH[FHVVDQGRUUHLQVXUDQFHFRYHUDJH7KHVHOILQVXUHGUHWHQWLRQLV

x GHGXFWLEOHRQOLDELOLW\ORVVWKHPHPEHULVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHILUVWRI
WKHGHGXFWLEOHDPRXQWRIHDFKFODLPZKLOH(QGXULVLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHUHPDLQLQJ
RQDOLDELOLW\ORVV
x GHGXFWLEOHRQSURSHUW\ORVVWKHPHPEHULVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHILUVWRI
WKHGHGXFWLEOHDPRXQWRIHDFKFODLPZKLOH(QGXULVLVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHUHPDLQLQJ
RQDSURSHUW\ORVV

(QGXULVDFTXLUHVUHLQVXUDQFHIURPXQUHODWHGLQVXUDQFHFRPSDQLHVRQD³SHURFFXUUHQFH´EDVLVWR
FRYHUDOOORVVHVRYHUWKHGHGXFWLEOHVDVVKRZQRQWKHSROLF\PD[LPXPOLPLWV/LDELOLW\FRYHUDJH
LVIRUDOOOLQHVRIOLDELOLW\FRYHUDJHLQFOXGLQJ3XEOLF2IILFLDO¶V/LDELOLW\7KH3URSHUW\FRYHUDJHLV
ZULWWHQRQDQ³DOOULVN´EODQNHWEDVLVXVLQJFXUUHQW6WDWHPHQWRI9DOXHV7KH3URSHUW\FRYHUDJH
LQFOXGHVEXWLVQRWOLPLWHGWRPRELOHHTXLSPHQWERLOHUDQGPDFKLQHU\HOHFWURQLFGDWDSURFHVVLQJ
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HTXLSPHQWEXVLQHVVLQWHUUXSWLRQFRXUVHRIFRQVWUXFWLRQDQGDGGLWLRQVSURSHUW\LQWUDQVLWILQH
DUWVF\EHUDQGDXWRPRELOHSK\VLFDOGDPDJHWRLQVXUHGYHKLFOHV/LDELOLW\FRYHUDJHOLPLWLV
PLOOLRQSHURFFXUUHQFHDQGSURSHUW\FRYHUDJHOLPLWLVELOOLRQSHURFFXUUHQFH(QGXULVRIIHUV
FULPHFRYHUDJHXSWRDOLPLWRIPLOOLRQSHURFFXUUHQFH

6LQFH(QGXULVLVDFRRSHUDWLYHSURJUDPWKHUHLVDMRLQWOLDELOLW\DPRQJWKHSDUWLFLSDWLQJ
PHPEHUV

7KHFRQWUDFWUHTXLUHVPHPEHUVWRFRQWLQXHPHPEHUVKLSIRUDSHULRGRIQRWOHVVWKDQRQH  \HDU
DQGPXVWJLYHQRWLFHGD\VEHIRUHWHUPLQDWLQJSDUWLFLSDWLRQ7KH0DVWHU$JUHHPHQW
,QWHUJRYHUQPHQWDO&RQWUDFW LVDXWRPDWLFDOO\UHQHZHGDIWHUWKHLQLWLDORQH  IXOOILVFDO\HDU
FRPPLWPHQW(YHQDIWHUWHUPLQDWLRQDPHPEHULVVWLOOUHVSRQVLEOHIRUFRQWULEXWLRQWR(QGXULVIRU
DQ\XQUHVROYHGXQUHSRUWHGDQGLQSURFHVVFODLPVIRUWKHSHULRGWKH\ZHUHDVLJQDWRU\WRWKH
0DVWHU$JUHHPHQW

(QGXULVLVIXOO\IXQGHGE\LWVPHPEHUSDUWLFLSDQWV&ODLPVDUHILOHGE\PHPEHUVZLWK(QGXULV
DQGDUHDGPLQLVWHUHGLQKRXVH

$%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUVFRQVLVWLQJRIVHYHQERDUGPHPEHUVJRYHUQV(QGXULV,WVPHPEHUVHOHFWWKH
%RDUGDQGWKHSRVLWLRQVDUHILOOHGRQDURWDWLQJEDVLV7KH%RDUGPHHWVTXDUWHUO\DQGLV
UHVSRQVLEOHIRUFRQGXFWLQJWKHEXVLQHVVDIIDLUVRI(QGXULV

127(±/21*7(50'(%7

7KH3RUWRI(GPRQGVLVVXHVJHQHUDOREOLJDWLRQDQGUHYHQXHERQGVWRILQDQFHWKHDFTXLVLWLRQ
SXUFKDVHRUFRQVWUXFWLRQRIYDULRXVSURMHFWV%RQGHGLQGHEWHGQHVVZDVDOVRHQWHUHGLQWRLQ
WRDGYDQFHUHIXQGVHYHUDOJHQHUDOREOLJDWLRQERQGV%RWKJHQHUDOREOLJDWLRQERQGVDQGUHYHQXH
ERQGVDUHUHSDLGIURPUHYHQXHV

$
*HQHUDO2EOLJDWLRQ%RQGV

7KHJHQHUDOREOLJDWLRQERQGVRXWVWDQGLQJIURP-DQXDU\WKURXJK'HFHPEHU
ZHUHDVIROORZV

3XUSRVH
0DWXULW\ ,QWHUHVW5DWH 2ULJLQDO$PRXQW ,QVWDOOPHQW
5HIXQG*2%RQGV     

7KHERQGPDWXUHGRQ
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%
5HYHQXH%RQGV

7KHUHYHQXHERQGVRXWVWDQGLQJIURP-DQXDU\WKURXJK'HFHPEHUZHUHDV
IROORZV

3XUSRVH
5HIXQGRI6SHFLDO5HYHQXH%RQGZKLFK
ZDVXVHGWRDFTXLUH+DUERU6TXDUHEXLOGLQJV
5HIXQGRI6SHFLDO5HYHQXH%RQGZKLFK
UHIXQGHGWKH6SHFLDO5HYHQXH%RQG
ZKLFKZDVXVHGWRDFTXLUH+DUERU6TXDUH
EXLOGLQJV

0DWXULW\ ,QWHUHVW5DWH 2ULJLQDO$PRXQW ,QVWDOOPHQW





 





 


7KHUHPDLQLQJEDODQFHRI6SHFLDO5HYHQXH%RQGZDVUHIXQGHGLQWRUHGXFHWKH
LQWHUHVWUDWHDQGVKRUWHQWKHERQGSD\PHQWSHULRG7KHDQQXDOGHEWVHUYLFHUHTXLUHPHQWVWR
PDWXULW\RIWKH6SHFLDO5HYHQXH5HIXQGLQJ%RQGDUHDVIROORZV

6SHFLDO5HY5HI%RQGV
<HDU(QGLQJ
'HFHPEHU
3ULQFLSDO
,QWHUHVW

 

 

 
7RWDO
  

7KH3RUWKDVSOHGJHGIXWXUH+DUERU6TXDUHUHYHQXHDQGQHWUHYHQXHVRIWKH3RUWWRUHSD\
LQ6SHFLDO5HYHQXH5HIXQGLQJ%RQGVLVVXHGLQ-DQXDU\3URFHHGVIURPWKH
ERQGVSURYLGHGILQDQFLQJIRUUHIXQGLQJWKHERQGVZKLFKSURYLGHGILQDQFLQJIRU
UHIXQGLQJWKH6SHFLDO5HYHQXH%RQG3URFHHGVIURPWKH6SHFLDO5HYHQXH%RQGZHUH
XVHGWRSXUFKDVHWKH+DUERU6TXDUHEXLOGLQJVDQGOHDVHKROGLQWHUHVWLQWKH+DUERU6TXDUH
3URSHUW\7KHERQGVDUHSD\DEOHIURP+DUERU6TXDUHUHYHQXHDQGQHWUHYHQXHVRIWKH3RUWDQG
DUHSD\DEOHWKURXJK$QQXDOSULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVWSD\PHQWVRQWKHERQGVDUHH[SHFWHGWR
UHTXLUHOHVVWKDQRI3RUWQHWUHYHQXHV7KHWRWDOSULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVWUHPDLQLQJWREHSDLG
RQWKHERQGVLV3ULQFLSDODQGLQWHUHVWSDLGIRUWKHFXUUHQW\HDURQERWKDQG
6SHFLDO5HYHQXH%RQGVZHUH3OHGJHGUHYHQXHVZHUH
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&
&KDQJHVLQ/RQJ7HUP/LDELOLWLHV

'XULQJWKH\HDUHQGHG'HFHPEHUWKHIROORZLQJFKDQJHVRFFXUUHGLQORQJWHUP
OLDELOLWLHV

%HJLQQLQJ
%DODQFH


$GGLWLRQV

(QGLQJ
%DODQFH
5HGXFWLRQV 

'XH
:LWKLQ
2QH<HDU

%RQGV3D\DEOH
*2DQG5HIXQGLQJ%RQGV
    
5HYHQXH 5HIXQGLQJ%RQGV
    
$GG8QDPRUWL]HG$PRXQWV
)RUERQGSUHPLXPV
   
7RWDOERQGVSD\DEOH
    
   
(PSOR\HHOHDYHEHQHILWV
   
2WKHUSRVWHPSOR\PHQWEHQHILWV
   
1HWSHQVLRQOLDELOLW\
   
(QYLURQPHQWDOUHPHGLDWLRQOLDELOLW\
7RWDO/RQJ7HUP/LDELOLWLHV     

127(/($6(6

$
3RUWDV/HVVHH

$VRI'HFHPEHUWKH3RUWKDGQRPDWHULDOQRQFDQFHODEOHFRQWUDFWVZKHUHWKH3RUWOHDVHV
SURSHUW\DVDOHVVHH

%
3RUWDV/HVVRU

7KH3RUWDVDOHVVRUHQWHUVLQWRRSHUDWLQJOHDVHVZLWKWHQDQWVIRUWKHXVHRIODQGDQGIDFLOLWLHVDW
WKHPDULQDDQGLWV+DUERU6TXDUHEXVLQHVVSDUNXQGHUOHDVHWHUPVRI\HDUWR\HDUVSOXV
OHDVHH[WHQVLRQV,QDGGLWLRQVRPHSURSHUWLHVDUHUHQWHGRQDPRQWKWRPRQWKEDVLV3RUW
SURFHGXUHLVWRQHJRWLDWHDOOOHDVHVDWIDLUPDUNHWYDOXHFRQVLGHULQJPDUNHWFRQGLWLRQVHFRQRPLF
IDFWRUVSURSHUW\FRQGLWLRQDQGORFDWLRQDVZHOODVRWKHUIDFWRUVWKDWPD\LPSDFWQHJRWLDWLQJ
OHDVHSULFHV

7KH3RUWFXUUHQWO\KDVDSSUR[LPDWHO\QRQFDQFHODEOHOHDVHDUUDQJHPHQWVUDQJLQJLQPRQWKO\
SD\PHQWVEHWZHHQDQGZLWKHLWKHUIL[HGLQFUHDVHVIURPRQHWRWKUHHSHUFHQW
&RQVXPHU3ULFH,QGH[UHQWHVFDODWLRQFODXVHVRUPDUNHWUDWHUHQWHVFDODWLRQFODXVHV
$SSUR[LPDWHO\RIWKHQRQFDQFHODEOHOHDVHVLQFOXGHFRQWUDFWWHUPVDOORZLQJRQHWRILYHOHDVH
H[WHQVLRQVLQWR\HDUWHUPV
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7KH3RUW¶VPLQLPXPIXWXUHOHDVHUHQWDOLQFRPHRQQRQFDQFHODEOHRSHUDWLQJOHDVHWHUPV
UHPDLQLQJLQH[FHVVRIRQH\HDUDUHDVIROORZV

0LQLPXP
<HDU(QGLQJ
5HQWDO
'HFHPEHU
,QFRPH




















7RWDO
 

7KH3RUW¶VOHDVHGSURSHUWLHVLQYROYHGDUHLQSDUWXVHGE\LQWHUQDO3RUWRSHUDWLRQVRULQSDUWRID
EXLOGLQJZLWKODQGDQGRUSDUWVRIDODQGSDUFHO7KHUHIRUHLWLVQRWUHDVRQDEO\GHWHUPLQDEOHWR
VHJUHJDWHWKHYDOXHRIDVVHWVDVVRFLDWHGZLWKSURGXFLQJPLQLPXPUHQWDOLQFRPHIURPWKHYDOXH
RIWKHDVVHWVDVVRFLDWHGZLWKDQHQWLUHIDFLOLW\

127(±&217,1*(1&,(6$1'/,7,*$7,21

7KH3RUWKDVUHFRUGHGLQLWVILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDOOPDWHULDOOLDELOLWLHVLQFOXGLQJDQHVWLPDWHIRU
VLWXDWLRQVZKLFKDUHQRW\HWUHVROYHGEXWZKHUHEDVHGRQDYDLODEOHLQIRUPDWLRQPDQDJHPHQW
EHOLHYHVWKDWLWLVSUREDEOHWKDWWKH3RUWZLOOKDYHWRPDNHSD\PHQW,QWKHRSLQLRQRI
PDQDJHPHQWWKH3RUW¶VLQVXUDQFHSROLFLHVDUHDGHTXDWHWRSD\DOONQRZQRUSHQGLQJFODLPV

7KH3RUWSDUWLFLSDWHVLQDQXPEHURIIHGHUDODQGVWDWHDVVLVWHGSURJUDPV7KHVHJUDQWVDUHVXEMHFW
WRDXGLWE\WKHJUDQWRUVRUWKHLUUHSUHVHQWDWLYHV6XFKDXGLWVFRXOGUHVXOWLQUHTXHVWVIRU
UHLPEXUVHPHQWWRJUDQWRUDJHQFLHVIRUH[SHQGLWXUHVGLVDOORZHGXQGHUWKHWHUPVRIWKHJUDQWV
3RUWPDQDJHPHQWEHOLHYHVWKDWVXFKGLVDOORZDQFHVLIDQ\ZLOOEHLPPDWHULDO

127(±32//87,215(0(',$7,212%/,*$7,216

7KH3RUWRI(GPRQGVLVVXEMHFWWRODZVDQGUHJXODWLRQVUHODWLQJWRWKHSURWHFWLRQRIWKH
HQYLURQPHQW7KH3RUW¶VSROLF\LVWRDFFUXHHQYLURQPHQWDODQGFOHDQXSUHODWHGFRVWVZKHQLWLV
ERWKSUREDEOHWKDWDOLDELOLW\KDVEHHQLQFXUUHGDQGZKHQWKHDPRXQWFDQEHUHDVRQDEO\
HVWLPDWHG

,Q1RYHPEHUWKH*RYHUQPHQWDO$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV%RDUGLVVXHG*$6%6WDWHPHQW1R
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations7KHSURYLVLRQV

Page 58

RIWKLV6WDWHPHQWDUHHIIHFWLYHIRUILVFDOSHULRGVEHJLQQLQJDIWHU'HFHPEHU7KH3RUW
DGRSWHGWKLVVWDQGDUGLQ

*$6%6WDWHPHQW1RUHTXLUHVGLVFORVXUHRI³REOLJDWLRQVWRDGGUHVVFXUUHQWRUSRWHQWLDO
GHWULPHQWDOHIIHFWVRIH[LVWLQJSROOXWLRQE\SDUWLFLSDWLQJLQSROOXWLRQUHPHGLDWLRQDFWLYLWLHV´
*$6%6WDWHPHQW1RLGHQWLILHVILYH³REOLJDWLQJHYHQWV´WKDWUHTXLUHDJRYHUQPHQWDJHQF\WR
GLVFORVHIXWXUHRXWOD\VDVVRFLDWHGZLWKUHPHGLDWLRQRIFRQWDPLQDWHGVLWHV2QFHDQ\RIWKHILYH
REOLJDWLQJHYHQWVRFFXUVWKHJRYHUQPHQWDJHQF\PXVWGRFXPHQWWKHFRPSRQHQWVRIH[SHFWHG
SROOXWLRQUHPHGLDWLRQRXWOD\VWKDWDUHUHDVRQDEO\HVWLPDEOH$WWKLVWLPHWKH3RUWKDVGHWHUPLQHG
WKDWIXWXUHFOHDQXSFRVWVDVVRFLDWHGZLWKRQHVLWHFRQVWLWXWHWKH3RUW¶VSROOXWLRQUHPHGLDWLRQ
REOLJDWLRQV

$
1DWXUHDQG6RXUFHRI3ROOXWLRQ5HPHGLDWLRQ2EOLJDWLRQV

)URPWRWKH3RUWRI(GPRQGVZDVLQYROYHGLQFOHDQLQJXSDSURSHUW\NQRZQDVWKH
+DUERU6TXDUHSURSHUW\ZKLFKZDVSXUFKDVHGE\WKH3RUWIURPWKH8QLRQ2LO&RPSDQ\LQ
)URPWRSRUWLRQVRIWKHSURSHUW\ZHUHXVHGDVDQRLODQGJDVROLQHGHSRWDQG
GLVWULEXWLRQIDFLOLW\DUDLOFDUFOHDQLQJIDFLOLW\DQDVSKDOWEDWFKSODQWDQGKHDY\HTXLSPHQW
VWRUDJH6HYHUDOUHPHGLDOLQYHVWLJDWLRQVZHUHFRQGXFWHGDWWKHSURSHUW\IURPWR,Q
-XQHDVXSSOHPHQWDOVLWHLQYHVWLJDWLRQZDVFRQGXFWHGDWWKHGLUHFWLRQRIWKH'HSDUWPHQWRI
(FRORJ\WRIXUWKHUGHILQHWKHH[WHQWRIFRQWDPLQDWLRQDWWKHSURSHUW\LGHQWLILHGGXULQJSUHYLRXV
LQYHVWLJDWLRQVWRKHOSLGHQWLI\DQ\DGGLWLRQDODUHDVRIFRQWDPLQDWLRQDQGWRIXUWKHUHYDOXDWHDQ\
LPSDFWVWRJURXQGZDWHU7KH3RUWGHYHORSHGDUHPHGLDWLRQSODQEDVHGRQWKDWLQYHVWLJDWLRQDQG
FRPPHQFHGFOHDQXSDFWLYLWLHV

7KH3RUW¶VHQYLURQPHQWDOHQJLQHHULQJILUP/DQGDX$VVRFLDWHVSUHSDUHGDUHSRUWIRUWKH3RUWRI
(GPRQGVLQ1RYHPEHUWKDWSURYLGHGHVWLPDWHVRIWKHFRVWRIUHPHGLDWLRQDFWLYLWLHVDWWKH
3RUWRI(GPRQGV¶+DUERU6TXDUHFRPSOH[GXHWRSDVWLQGXVWULDODFWLYLWLHVDWWKHVLWH7KH
HVWLPDWHGFRVWVSUHVHQWHGLQWKHUHSRUWDUHIRUDOOUHPHGLDWLRQDFWLYLWLHVDQWLFLSDWHGDWWKHVLWH
ZKLFKDUHGHVFULEHGDV3KDVH,WKURXJK3KDVH,,,UHPHGLDWLRQLQWKHUHSRUW3KDVH,DQG3KDVH,,
UHPHGLDWLRQHIIRUWVZHUHHVVHQWLDOO\FRPSOHWHGLQDQG3KDVH,,,UHPHGLDWLRQUHPDLQV
WREHFRPSOHWHG

%
$PRXQWRI(VWLPDWHG/LDELOLW\

7KHHVWLPDWHGFRVWRI3KDVH,,,UHPHGLDWLRQZDVDUDQJHRIWRUHIOHFWLQJWKH
XQFHUWDLQW\RIWKHH[WHQWRIFRQWDPLQDWLRQXQGHUH[LVWLQJVWUXFWXUHVWKDWFRXOGQRWEHUHDGLO\
DFFHVVHGIRUDVVHVVPHQW/DQGDX$VVRFLDWHVHVWLPDWHVWKHOLDELOLW\WRWKH3RUWRI(GPRQGV
DVVRFLDWHGZLWKWKHIXWXUHFOHDQXSRINQRZQDUHDVRIFRQWDPLQDWLRQRQ3RUWSURSHUW\WREH
WR LQGROODUV 7KHPLGGOHSRLQWRIWKLVHVWLPDWHGUDQJHLV

7KH*RYHUQPHQWDO$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV%RDUGLPSOHPHQWHGQHZVWDQGDUGVIRUUHFRUGLQJ
SROOXWLRQUHPHGLDWLRQREOLJDWLRQVIRUILQDQFLDOSHULRGVEHJLQQLQJDIWHU'HFHPEHU7KH
3RUWLQFUHDVHGLWVOLDELOLW\IURPLQWRLQLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHVH
VWDQGDUGV
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$VSHU*$6%6WDWHPHQW1R³(VWLPDWHVRIDSROOXWLRQUHPHGLDWLRQOLDELOLW\VKRXOGEH
DGMXVWHGZKHQEHQFKPDUNVDUHPHWRUZKHQQHZLQIRUPDWLRQLQGLFDWHVFKDQJHVLQHVWLPDWHG
RXWOD\VGXHWRIRUH[DPSOHFKDQJHVLQWKHUHPHGLDWLRQSODQRURSHUDWLQJFRQGLWLRQV7KHVH
FKDQJHVPD\LQFOXGHWKHW\SHRIHTXLSPHQWIDFLOLWLHVDQGVHUYLFHVWKDWZLOOEHXVHGSULFH
LQFUHDVHVRUUHGXFWLRQVIRUVSHFLILFRXWOD\HOHPHQWVVXFKDVRQJRLQJPRQLWRULQJUHTXLUHPHQWV
FKDQJHVLQWHFKQRORJ\DQGFKDQJHVLQOHJDORUUHJXODWRU\UHTXLUHPHQWV´

7KH3RUWGLGQRWPHHWDQ\EHQFKPDUNVRUUHFHLYHQHZLQIRUPDWLRQWKDWLQGLFDWHVFKDQJHVLQ
HVWLPDWHGRXWOD\VLQ7KHUHIRUHWKH3RUWGLGQRWPDNHDQ\DGMXVWPHQWVWR(QYLURQPHQWDO
5HPHGLDWLRQ/LDELOLW\LQ

&
0HWKRGVDQG$VVXPSWLRQV8VHGIRUWKH(VWLPDWH

7KHPDMRULW\RIWKHFRQWDPLQDWLRQWREHDGGUHVVHGLQ3KDVH,,,UHPHGLDWLRQLVORFDWHGXQGHU
H[LVWLQJEXLOGLQJVVRPHDUHDVRIUHVLGXDOFRQWDPLQDWLRQ H[SHFWHGWREHUHODWLYHO\VPDOO DUH
ORFDWHGRXWVLGHEXLOGLQJIRRWSULQWVEXWXQGHUQHDWKSDYHGVXUIDFHV3KDVH,,,DFWLYLWLHVZHUHQRW
XQGHUWDNHQGXHWRWKHLQDFFHVVLELOLW\RIWKHFRQWDPLQDWHGDUHDVDOWKRXJKWKH3RUWKDVFRPPLWWHG
WRUHPHGLDWLRQDWVXFKWLPHWKDWWKHVWUXFWXUHVDWWKH+DUERU6TXDUHFRPSOH[DUHUHPRYHGIRU
IXWXUHGHYHORSPHQW

7KH3RUWKDVFKRVHQWRXVHRQO\WKHEHVWFDVHDQGZRUVHFDVHIRUWKHUDQJHVRISRWHQWLDO
RXWFRPHV$VWKH3RUWGRHVQRWKDYHDUHDVRQDEOHEDVLVIRUVSHFLI\LQJWKHSUREDELOLW\DQGDPRXQW
RIDPRVWOLNHO\SRWHQWLDOFDVKIORZLWLVXVLQJRQO\WZRGDWDSRLQWVDUDQJHRIWR


'
3RWHQWLDOIRU&KDQJHV

$V3KDVH,,,UHPHGLDWLRQPD\RQO\EHFRPSOHWHGZKHQWKH+DUERU6TXDUHSURSHUW\LV
UHGHYHORSHGWKLVHVWLPDWHPD\EHUHYLVHGGXHWRSULFHLQFUHDVHVRUUHGXFWLRQVWHFKQRORJ\DQG
DSSOLFDEOHODZVRUUHJXODWLRQV

(
(VWLPDWHG5HFRYHULHV5HGXFLQJWKH/LDELOLW\

7KH3RUWGRHVQRWH[SHFWWRUHFHLYHDQ\UHFRYHULHVWRUHGXFHWKLVOLDELOLW\

127(±35,253(5,2'$'-8670(176

,QWKH3RUWDQGD3RUWWHQDQWMRLQWO\SDLGWRUHSODFHDURRIRQRQHRIWKH3RUW¶VUHQWDO
EXLOGLQJV7KH3RUWLQFRUUHFWO\RQO\FDSLWDOL]HGLWVSRUWLRQWKHURRI,QWKHHUURUZDV
FRUUHFWHGZLWKDQLQFUHDVHRIWREXLOGLQJVRIIVHWE\DSULRUSHULRGDGMXVWPHQWDQGDQ
LQFUHDVHRIWRDFFXPXODWHGGHSUHFLDWLRQRIIVHWE\DSULRUSHULRGDGMXVWPHQW1HWFKDQJHV
WR1HW3RVLWLRQIURPWKLVHUURUFRUUHFWLRQZDVDQLQFUHDVHRI

,QWKH3RUWUHYLHZHGLWVIL[HGDVVHWVDQGGHWHUPLQHGWKDWVRPHSDUWLDOGLVSRVDOVVKRXOG
KDYHEHHQUHFRUGHGLQ\HDUVZKHQFRPSRQHQWVRIFDSLWDODVVHWVZHUHUHSODFHG,QDGGLWLRQVRPH
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FDSLWDODVVHWOLYHVZHUHGHFUHDVHGWRUHIOHFWDQWLFLSDWHGUHPDLQLQJOLYHV7KHWRWDODGMXVWPHQWZDV
DUHGXFWLRQWR1HW3RVLWLRQRI
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PORT OF EDMONDS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements of the Port of Edmonds (the Port) have been prepared in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governments. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant
accounting policies are described below.
A.

Reporting Entity
The Port was incorporated in December 1948, and operates under the laws of the State of
Washington applicable to public port districts. The Port is a special purpose government
and provides marina and property lease/rental operations to the general public and is
supported primarily through user charges. The Port is governed by an elected five
member board.
As required by generally accepted accounting principles, management has considered all
potential component units in defining the reporting entity. The Port has no component
units.

B.

Basis of Accounting and Reporting
The accounting records of the Port are maintained in accordance with methods prescribed
by the State Auditor under the authority of Chapter 43.09 RCW. The Port uses the
Budgeting, Accounting and Reporting System for GAAP Cities, Counties, and Special
Purpose Districts in the State of Washington.
The Port’s financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the full-accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year in which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.
All assets and all liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with the Port’s
activity are included on the statements of net position. The reported fund position is
segregated into net investment in capital assets, and restricted and unrestricted
components of net position. Operating statements present increases (revenues and gains)
and decreases (expenses and losses) in net position. The Port discloses changes in cash
flows by a separate statement that presents its operating, noncapital financing, capital and
related financing, and investing activities.
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Capital asset purchases are capitalized and depreciated over their useful life, and longterm liabilities are accounted for in the appropriate fund.
The Port distinguishes between operating revenues and expenses and nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with the Port’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the Port are charges to customers for boating services.
The Port also recognizes land and building lease revenue as operating revenue. Operating
expenses for the Port include general operations, maintenance, general and
administrative, and depreciation. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
C.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

D.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position
1.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
It is the Port’s policy to invest all temporary cash surpluses. At December 31,
2016, the treasurer was holding $7,979,299 in short-term residual investments of
surplus cash. This amount is classified on the Statement of Net Position as cash
and cash equivalents.
The amounts reported as cash and cash equivalents also include compensating
balances maintained with certain banks in lieu of payments for services rendered.
The average compensating balances maintained during 2016 were approximately
$605,000.
The Port considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with
a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

2.

Investments – See Note 3, Deposits and Investments.

3.

Receivables
Accounts receivable consist of amounts owed from private individuals or
organizations for goods and services, including amounts owed for which billings
have not been prepared. The Port classifies prepaid rent from land and building
tenants as unearned revenue in the current liability section of the financial
statements.
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Taxes receivable consists of property taxes and related interest and penalties (See
Note 4, Property Taxes).
Accrued interest receivable consists of amounts earned on investments at the end
of the year.
4.

Inventory
Inventory consists of fuel and workyard supplies held for sale to customers.
Inventory is valued by the FIFO (first-in, first-out basis) cost method, which
approximates market value.

5.

Capital Assets and Depreciation - See Note 5, Capital Assets and Depreciation.

6.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In 2005, the Port of Edmonds refunded $3,620,000 of its 1997 General Obligation
Bonds for $3,925,000. The difference was recorded as a deferred loss on
refunding. The Port implemented GASB Statement Number 65 in 2012. The
deferred loss on refunding is now shown as a deferred outflow of resources
instead of deferred interest on the Statement of Net Position.

7.

Employee Leave Benefits
Employee leave benefits are absences for which employees will be paid, such as
vacation and holiday leave. The Port records employee leave benefits as an
expense and liability when earned.
Each employee may carry forward 120 hours of vacation pay to the following
year. Unused vacation pay is payable upon separation, retirement, or death. Sick
leave may accumulate up to 1,000 hours. Beginning in 2014, the Executive
Director’s contract allows him to be compensated for 100% of his sick pay upon
termination. The Port began accruing this in 2014. No accrual is made for sick
pay for other employees as it expires if unused.

8.

Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of all state sponsored
pension plans and additions to/deductions from those plans’ fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Washington
State Department of Retirement Systems. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.
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9.

Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses consist of accrued leasehold, payroll, sales, and business taxes,
employee withholdings, accrued wages payable, and abandoned property.

10.

Long-Term Debt - See Note 10, Long-Term Debt.

11.

Unearned Revenue
At December 31, 2016, the Port held $92,435 in Unearned Revenue. These
amounts are prepayments of rent and will be recognized as revenue in 2017.

NOTE 2 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

There have been no material violations of finance-related legal or contractual provisions.
NOTE 3 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
A.

Deposits
The Port’s deposits and certificates of deposit are entirely covered by federal depository
insurance (FDIC) or by collateral held in a multiple financial institution collateral pool
administered by the Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC). As
investments in the Washington Local Government Investment Pool have a maturity of
three months or less when purchased, deposits in the Investment Pool are included in
cash and cash equivalents.

B.

Investments Authorized
The Port may invest in all types of securities approved by State law. Those securities
include:
1.

Savings or time accounts, including certificates of deposit, in designated qualified
public depositories in accordance with RCW 39.58.

2.

Certificates of deposit in commercial banks, savings and loan associations, and
mutual savings banks doing business in this state, but not holding collateral pursuant to RCW 39.58, in an amount not in excess of FDIC or FSLIC insurance
coverage.

3.

Certificates, notes, or bonds of the United States, or other obligations of the U.S.
government or its agencies, or of any corporation wholly owned by the government of the United States.
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4.

Federal home loan bank notes and bonds, Federal land bank bonds, Federal national mortgage association notes, debentures, and guaranteed certificates of participation.

5.

Obligations of any other government sponsored corporation whose obligations are
or may become eligible as collateral for advances to member banks as determined
by the board of governors of the federal reserve systems.

6.

Bonds of the state of Washington and any local government in the State of Washington that carry one of the three highest ratings of a nationally recognized rating
agency.

7.

General obligation bonds of a state other than the state of Washington and general
obligation bonds of a local government of a state other than the state of Washington that carry one of the three highest ratings of a nationally recognized rating
agency.

8.

Shares of money market funds with portfolios consisting of securities otherwise
authorized by law for investment by local governments.

Port staff invests surplus cash according to Port Resolution Number 13-12. Investment
objectives, in priority order, are safety, liquidity, and return on investment.
C.

As of December 31, 2016, the Port had the following investments:
Investment

FICO STRIP PRN
Federal National Mortgage Association
Federal Farm Credit Bank
Federal Farm Credit Bank
Federal National Mortgage Association
Federal Home Loan Bank
Federal National Mortgage Association
Resolution Funding Corporation
Federal Farm Credit Bank
Federal Farm Credit Bank

D.

Matures
Fair Value
11/30/2017 $ 502,890
1/30/2018
498,260
11/6/2018
248,486
2/22/2019
497,185
6/13/2019
247,405
11/8/2019
247,666
3/30/2020
492,566
7/15/2020
490,940
6/2/2021
488,519
8/16/2021
480,975
$ 4,194,890

Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in event of a failure of the counterparty to an
investment transaction, the Port would not be able to recover the value of the investment
or collateral securities. All security transactions entered into by the Port of Edmonds are
conducted on a delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis. Securities purchased by the Port
are delivered against payment and held in a custodial safekeeping account. The Port has
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designated U.S. Bank as the third party custodian. Safekeeping receipts evidence all
transactions. None of the Port’s investments are held by counterparties.
E.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that an investment’s fair value decreases as market interest
rates increase. Through its investment policy, the Port manages its exposure to fair value
losses arising from increasing interest rates by setting maturity and effective duration
limits for the Port’s Investment Portfolio. Securities within the portfolio are limited to
maturity lengths of five years.

F.

Change in Fair Value of Investments
Change in fair value of investments of ($42,231) is the difference between the price at
December 31, 2015 or at which the Port of Edmonds purchased the securities, whichever
is later, and the fair value at December 31, 2016. GASB Statement Number 31, paragraph
7, requires the Port to “…report investments at fair value in the balance sheets. Fair value
is the amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties…” The market value or fair value is reported to the Port by U.S.
Bank, the Port’s third party safekeeping bank. If the Port holds the investments to
maturity or call date, there will be no realized loss or gain.

NOTE 4 – PROPERTY TAXES
The county treasurer acts as an agent to collect property taxes levied in the county for all taxing
authorities.
January 1
February 14
April 30
May 31
October 31

Property Tax Calendar
Taxes are levied and become an enforceable lien against properties.
Tax bills are mailed.
First of two equal installment payments is due.
Assessed value of property is established for next year’s levy at 100
percent of market value.
Second installment is due.

Property taxes are recorded as a receivable when levied, offset by an unearned revenue. During
the year, property tax revenues are recognized equally over all twelve months. Property taxes
collected in advance of the fiscal year to which it applies is recorded as a deferred inflow and
recognized as revenue of the period to which it applies. No allowance for uncollectible tax is
established because delinquent taxes are considered fully collectible. Prior year tax levies were
recorded using the same principle, and delinquent taxes are evaluated annually.
The Port may levy up to $0.45 per $1,000 of assessed valuation for general governmental
services. Washington State Constitution and Washington State law, RCW 84.55.010, limit the
rate. The Port may also levy taxes at a lower rate.
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The Port’s regular levy for 2016 was approximately $0.092 per $1,000 on an assessed valuation
of $4,361,035,150 for a total regular tax levy of $400,000.
NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION
Capital assets include land, buildings, equipment, and improvements. Capital assets are defined
by the Port as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $3,000 and an estimated useful
life in excess of 1 year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost,
where historical cost is not known. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the
date of donation.
Costs for additions or improvements to capital assets are capitalized when they increase the
effectiveness or efficiency of the asset. The costs for normal maintenance and repairs are not
capitalized.
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of the capital assets is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed.
The Port has acquired certain assets with funding provided by federal and state financial
assistance programs. Depending on the terms of the agreements involved, the federal and state
governments could retain an equity interest in these assets. However, the Port has sufficient legal
interest to accomplish the purposes for which the assets were acquired, and has included such
assets within the applicable account.
When an asset is sold, retired, or otherwise disposed of, the original cost of the property and the
cost of installation, less salvage, is removed from the Port of Edmonds’ capital asset accounts,
accumulated depreciation is charged with the accumulated depreciation related to the property
sold, and the net gain or loss on disposition is credited or charged to income.
Depreciation expense is charged to operations to allocate the cost of capital assets over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method based on the following estimated useful
lives:
Buildings and Structures
Machinery and Equipment
Other Improvements

10 to 50 years
3 to 15 years
5 to 99 years
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Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2016, was as follows:

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Beginning
Balance
1/1/2016
$ 4,323,675
522,169
4,845,844

Increases
$

129,778
129,778

Decreases
$

Ending
Balance
12/31/2016

643,084
643,084

$ 4,323,675
8,863
4,332,538

Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings
Marina and other improvements
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated

16,429,775
36,506,802
1,206,471
54,143,048

592,929
82,935
48,111
723,975

16,447
40,032
56,479

17,006,257
36,589,737
1,214,550
54,810,544

Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings
Marina and other improvements
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

6,551,613
19,952,122
863,389
27,367,124

661,030
1,005,832
64,653
$ 1,731,515

16,447
66,368
38,829
$ 121,644

7,196,195
20,891,586
889,213
$ 28,976,994

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

$ 26,775,925

$ 25,833,549

NOTE 6 – CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS
The Port has active construction projects as of December 31, 2016. At year-end, the Port’s
commitments with contractors are as follows:

Project
Fuel Dock Sales Equipment
Gutter Replacement

Spent to Date
$
$
5,002
$
5,002

Remaining
Commitment
$
60,148
$
34,918
$
95,066

Of the committed balance of $95,066, the Port has sufficient funding available as per Note 1 –
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Section D – Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position,
Number 1 – Cash and Cash Equivalents.
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NOTE 7 – PENSION PLANS
The following table represents the aggregate pension amounts for all plans subject to the
requirements of the GASB Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions for
the year 2016:
Aggregate Pension Amounts - All Plans
Pension liabilities
$
Pension assets
$
Deferred outflows of resources $
Deferred inflows of resources
$
Pension expense/expenditures
$

(1,564,086)
273,791
(45,285)
128,826

State Sponsored Pension Plans
Substantially all of the Port’s full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of
the following statewide retirement systems administered by the Washington State Department of
Retirement Systems, under cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee defined benefit and
defined contribution retirement plans. The State Legislature establishes, and amends, laws
pertaining to the creation and administration of all public retirement systems.
The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the primary government of
the State of Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report
(CAFR) that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for each plan.
The DRS CAFR may be obtained by writing to:
Department of Retirement Systems
Communications Unit
P.O. Box 48380
Olympia, WA 98540-8380
Or the DRS CAFR may be downloaded from the DRS website at www.drs.wa.gov.
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)
PERS members include elected officials; state employees; employees of the Supreme, Appeals
and Superior Courts; employees of the legislature; employees of district and municipal courts;
employees of local governments; and higher education employees not participating in higher
education retirement programs. PERS is comprised of three separate pension plans for membership purposes. PERS plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans, and PERS plan 3 is a defined
benefit plan with a defined contribution component.
PERS Plan 1 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are
determined as two percent of the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the
member’s years of service. The AFC is the average of the member’s 24 highest consecutive
service months. Members are eligible for retirement from active status at any age with at least 30
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years of service, at age 55 with at least 25 years of service, or at age 60 with at least five years of
service. Members retiring from active status prior to the age of 65 may receive actuarially
reduced benefits. Retirement benefits are actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor
benefit. Other benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments, an optional cost-of-living
adjustment (COLA), and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the
Department of Labor and Industries. PERS 1 members were vested after the completion of five
years of eligible service. The plan was closed to new entrants on September 30, 1977.
Contributions
The PERS Plan 1 member contribution rate is established by State statute at 6 percent. The
employer contribution rate is developed by the Office of the State Actuary and includes an
administrative expense component that is currently set at 0.18 percent. Each biennium, the state
Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 1 employer contribution rates. The PERS Plan 1 required
contribution rates (expressed as a percentage of covered payroll) for 2016 were as follows:
PERS Plan 1
Actual Contribution Rates:
PERS Plan 1
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
Administrative Fee
Total

Employer
6.23%
4.77%
0.18%
11.18%

Employee*
6.00%
6.00%
6.00%

* For employees participating in JBM, the contribution rate was 12.26%.
PERS Plan 2/3 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are
determined as two percent of the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the
member’s years of service for Plan 2 and 1 percent of AFC for Plan 3. The AFC is the average of
the member’s 60 highest-paid consecutive service months. There is no cap on years of service
credit. Members are eligible for retirement with a full benefit at 65 with at least five years of
service credit. Retirement before age 65 is considered an early retirement. PERS Plan 2/3
members who have at least 20 years of service credit and are 55 years of age or older, are eligible
for early retirement with a benefit that is reduced by a factor that varies according to age for each
year before age 65. PERS Plan 2/3 members who have 30 or more years of service credit and are
at least 55 years old can retire under one of two provisions:
x

With a benefit that is reduced by three percent for each year before age 65; or

x

With a benefit that has a smaller (or no) reduction (depending on age) that imposes
stricter return-to-work rules.

PERS Plan 2/3 members hired on or after May 1, 2013 have the option to retire early by
accepting a reduction of five percent for each year of retirement before age 65. This option is
available only to those who are age 55 or older and have at least 30 years of service credit. PERS
Plan 2/3 retirement benefits are also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor
benefit. Other PERS Plan 2/3 benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments, a cost-of-
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living allowance (based on the CPI), capped at three percent annually and a one-time duty related
death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor and Industries. PERS 2 members are
vested after completing five years of eligible service. Plan 3 members are vested in the defined
benefit portion of their plan after ten years of service; or after five years of service if 12 months
of that service are earned after age 44.
PERS Plan 3 defined contribution benefits are totally dependent on employee contributions and
investment earnings on those contributions. PERS Plan 3 members choose their contribution rate
upon joining membership and have a chance to change rates upon changing employers. As
established by statute, Plan 3 required defined contribution rates are set at a minimum of 5
percent and escalate to 15 percent with a choice of six options. Employers do not contribute to
the defined contribution benefits. PERS Plan 3 members are immediately vested in the defined
contribution portion of their plan.
Contributions
The PERS Plan 2/3 employer and employee contribution rates are developed by the Office of
the State Actuary to fully fund Plan 2 and the defined benefit portion of Plan 3. The Plan 2/3
employer rates include a component to address the PERS Plan 1 UAAL and an administrative
expense that is currently set at 0.18 percent. Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council
adopts Plan 2 employer and employee contribution rates and Plan 3 contribution rates. The PERS
Plan 2/3 required contribution rates (expressed as a percentage of covered payroll) for 2016 were
as follows:
PERS Plan 2/3
Actual Contribution Rates:
PERS Plan 2/3
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
Administrative Fee
Employee PERS Plan 3
Total

Employer 2/3
6.23%
4.77%
0.18%
11.18%

Employee 2*
6.12%
varies
6.12%

* For employees participating in JBM, the contribution rate was 15.30%.
The Port’s actual PERS plan contributions were $76,567 to PERS Plan 1 and $95,473 to PERS
Plan 2/3 for the year ended December 31, 2016.
Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability (TPL) for each of the DRS plans was determined using the most recent
actuarial valuation completed in 2016 with a valuation date of June 30, 2015. The actuarial
assumptions used in the valuation were based on the results of the Office of the State Actuary’s
(OSA) 2007-2012 Experience Study.
Additional assumptions for subsequent events and law changes are current as of the 2015
actuarial valuation report. The TPL was calculated as of the valuation date and rolled forward to
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the measurement date of June 30, 2016. Plan liabilities were rolled forward from June 30, 2015,
to June 30, 2016, reflecting each plan’s normal cost (using the entry-age cost method), assumed
interest and actual benefit payments.
x
x
x

Inflation: 3.0% total economic inflation; 3.75% salary inflation
Salary increases: In addition to the base 3.75% salary inflation assumption, salaries
are also expected to grow by promotions and longevity.
Investment rate of return: 7.5%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 report’s Combined Healthy Table and Combined
Disabled Table, published by the Society of Actuaries. The OSA applied offsets to the base table
and recognized future improvements in mortality by projecting the mortality rates using 100
percent Scale BB. Mortality rates are applied on a generational basis; meaning, each member is
assumed to receive additional mortality improvements in each future year throughout his or her
lifetime. There were minor changes in methods and assumptions since the last valuation. The
only change that affected the Port’s plans are that for all systems, the assumed valuation interest
rate was lowered from 7.8% to 7.7%. Assumed administrative factors were updated.
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for all DRS plans was 7.5 percent.
To determine that rate, an asset sufficiency test included an assumed 7.7 percent long-term
discount rate to determine funding liabilities for calculating future contribution rate
requirements. (All plans use 7.7 percent, which has assumed 7.5 percent). Consistent with the
long-term expected rate of return, a 7.5 percent future investment rate of return on invested
assets was assumed for the test. Contributions from plan members and employers are assumed to
continue being made at contractually required rates (including PERS 2/3, whose rates include a
component for the PERS 1 plan liabilities). Based on these assumptions, the pension plans’
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return of 7.5 percent was
used to determine the total liability.
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
The long-term expected rate of return on the DRS pension plan investments of 7.5 percent was
determined using a building-block-method. The Washington State Investment Board (WSIB)
used a best estimate of expected future rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense, including inflation) to develop each major asset class. Those expected
returns make up one component of WSIB’s capital market assumptions. The WSIB uses the
capital market assumptions and their target asset allocation to simulate future investment returns
at various future times. The long-term expected rate of return of 7.5 percent approximately
equals the median of the simulated investment returns over a 50-year time horizon.
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Estimated Rates of Return by Asset Class
Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension
plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2016, are summarized in the table below. The
inflation component used to create the table is 2.2 percent and represents the WSIB’s most recent
long-term estimate of broad economic inflation.
Asset Class

Target
Allocation

Fixed Income
Tangible Assets
Real Estate
Global Equity
Private Equity

20%
5%
15%
37%
23%
100%

% Long-Term
Expected Real Rate
of Return
Arithmetic
1.70%
4.40%
5.80%
6.60%
9.60%

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset)
The table below presents the Port’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as what the Port’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point
lower (6.5 percent) or 1-percentage point higher (8.5 percent) than the current rate.
1% Decrease
(6.5%)
PERS 1
PERS 2/3

Current
1% Increase
Discount Rate
(8.5%)
(7.5%)
$901,558
$747,623
$615,153
$1,503,255
$816,463
$(425,016)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the State’s pension plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued DRS financial report.
Pension Liabilities (Assets), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
At June 30, 2016, the Port reported a total pension liability of $1,564,086 for its proportionate
share of the net pension liabilities as follows:
PERS 1
PERS 2/3

Liability (or Asset)
$747,623
$816,463
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At June 30, the Port’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liabilities was as follows:

PERS 1
PERS 2/3

Proportionate Proportionate Change in
Share 6/30/15 Share 6/30/16 Proportion
0.014396%
0.013921%
-0.000475%
0.016797%
0.016216%
-0.000581%

Employer contribution transmittals received and processed by the DRS for the fiscal year ended
June 30 are used as the basis for determining each employer’s proportionate share of the
collective pension amounts reported by the DRS in the Schedules of Employer and Nonemployer
Allocations for all plans.
The collective net pension liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the actuarial
valuation date on which the total pension liability (asset) is based was as of June 30, 2015, with
update procedures used to roll forward the total pension liability to the measurement date.
Pension Expense
For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Port recognized pension expense as follows:
Pension Expense
$13,497
$115,329
$128,826

PERS 1
PERS 2/3
Total

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
At December 31, 2016, the Port reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:
PERS 1
Differences between expected and actual
experience
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan
investments
Changes of assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences
between contributions and proportionate
share of contributions
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date
TOTAL

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
$0

$0

$18,824

$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$37,014

$0

$55,838

$0
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PERS 2/3
Differences between expected and actual
experience
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan
investments
Changes of assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences
between contributions and proportionate
share of contributions
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date
TOTAL
All Plans in Total
Differences between expected and actual
experience
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan
investments
Changes of assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences
between contributions and proportionate
share of contributions
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date
TOTAL

Deferred
Deferred Inflows
Outflows of
of Resources
Resources
$43,476
($26,953)
$99,911

$0

$8,439
$17,784

$0
($18,332)

$48,343

$0

$217,953

($45,285)

Deferred
Deferred Inflows
Outflows of
of Resources
Resources
$43,476
($26,953)
$118,735

$0

$8,439
$17,784

$0
($18,332)

$85,357

$0

$273,791

($45,285)

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Port’s contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability
in the year ended December 31, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
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PERS 1
Inflows

PERS 2/3

Outflows

Inflows

Outflows

-

(4,635)

(14,152)

16,397

-

(4,635)

(14,152)

16,397

-

17,288

(14,152)

87,780

-

10,806

(2,830)

49,037

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

18,824

(45,285)

169,610

NOTE 8 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLANS
In June 2004, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 45,
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions. The Port adopted this standard in 2009.
As per the GASB Statement No. 45 Summary, “In addition to pensions, many state and local
governmental employers provide other postemployment benefits (OPEB) as part of the total
compensation offered to attract and retain the services of qualified employees. OPEB includes
postemployment healthcare, as well as other forms of postemployment benefits (for example, life
insurance) when provided separately from a pension plan. This Statement establishes standards
for the measurement, recognition, and display of OPEB expenses/expenditures and related
liabilities (assets), note disclosures, and if applicable, required supplementary information (RSI)
in the financial reports of state and local governmental employers.”
A.

Plan Description

The Port of Edmonds provides medical, dental, life, and long-term disability insurance to its
employees and Commissioners through the Washington State Public Employees Benefit Board
(PEBB). Port employees who end public employment are eligible to continue PEBB insurance
coverage as a retiree if they retire under the public employees’ retirement system and are vested
in that system.
Other post-employment benefits (OPEB) are benefits provided to retired employees beyond
those provided by their pension plans. Such benefits include medical, prescription drug, life,
dental, and vision insurance. PEBB offers retirees access to all of these benefits and PEBB
employers provide monetary assistance, or subsidies, these benefits.
The OPEB relationship between PEBB employers and their employees and retirees is not
formalized in a contract or plan document. Rather, the benefits are provided in accordance with a
substantive plan. A substantive plan is one in which the plan terms are understood by the
employers and plan members. This understanding is based on communications between the
employers and plan members and the historical pattern of practice with regard to the sharing of
benefit costs.
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The Office of the State Actuary, a department within the primary government of the State of
Washington, issues a publicly available Other Post-Employment Benefits Actuarial Valuation
Report. The Other Post-Employment Benefits Actuarial Valuation Report may be obtained by
writing to: Office of the State Actuary, PO Box 40914, Olympia, Washington 98504-0914 or it
may be downloaded from the Office of the State Actuary website at http://osa.leg.wa.gov.
B.

Subsidies

The Washington State Health Care Authority (HCA) administers PEBB plan benefits. For
medical insurance coverage, the HCA has two claims pools: one covering employees and nonMedicare eligible retirees, and the other covering retirees enrolled in Medicare Parts A and B.
Each participating employer pays a portion of the premiums for active employees. For retirees,
participating employers provide two different subsidies: an explicit subsidy and an implicit
subsidy.
The explicit subsidy, permitted under RCW 41.05.085, is a straightforward, set dollar amount for
a specific group of people. The explicit subsidy lowers the monthly premium paid by retired
members enrolled in Medicare Parts A and B. PEBB determines the amount of the explicit
subsidy annually.
The implicit subsidy, set up under RCW 41.05.022, is more complex because it is not a direct
payment from the employer on behalf of the member. Since claims experience for employees
and non-Medicare eligible retirees are pooled when determining premiums, these retired
members pay a premium based on a pool of members that, on average, are younger and healthier.
There is an implicit subsidy from the employee group since the premiums paid by the retirees are
lower than they would have been if the retirees were insured separately. The subsidies are valued
using the difference between the age-based claims costs and the premium paid by the retirees.
PEBB has also historically provided subsidized basic life insurance (Plan A) coverage to retirees.
This was an explicit life insurance subsidy set up by the PEBB Board and approved as part of the
budget process. However, beginning January 1, 2012, the PEBB Board eliminated the explicit
life insurance subsidy on a permanent basis.
Before 2009, these subsidies were not projected and accounted for under accrual basis
accounting. Accrual accounting is meant to match the timing between when something occurs
and when it is accounted for. In this case, it is meant to match the expense to the year in which
the benefits are earned by the member.
C.

Funding Policy

Pay-as-you-go funding occurs when an employer chooses to contribute (pay) for benefits only
when they occur or become due (after retirement). Before 2009, this cost was expensed as the
Port paid the current year's subsidies. However, the unfunded liability, which is the difference
between what the Port accrues (assuming on-going future payments) and what the Port currently
pays, was growing and was not accounted for under the pay-as-you-go method.
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GASB Statement No. 45 was created in an attempt to:
x
x
x
x
x
x

Create financial transparency.
Create better alignment between public and private sector accounting.
Provide clarity among bargaining groups to show the true cost of benefits over time.
Provide employers knowledge of the true cost of benefits over time.
Provide investors knowledge of the true long-term liabilities.
Show the decision makers a cost that they need to recognize.

The Port funds the implicit and explicit subsidies on a pay-as-you-go basis, meaning that Port
pays these costs as they occur or become due.
D.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The Port’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost is calculated based upon the
annual required contribution (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities over a period of thirty years as of January 1, 2009. The following table shows
the components of the Port’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to
the plan, and changes in the Port’s net OPEB. The net OPEB obligation of $628,154 is included
as a noncurrent liability in the Statement of Net Position.
Fiscal Year Ending Fiscal Year Ending Fiscal Year Ending
12/31/2015
12/31/2016
12/31/2014
Determination of Annual Required Contribution:
Normal Cost at Year End
Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability
Annual Required Contribution
Determination of Annual OPEB Cost:
Annual Required Contribution
Net OPEB Obligation Interest
Net OPEB Obligation Amortizaton
Annual OPEB Cost
Determination of Net OPEB Obligation:
Starting Net OPEB Obligation
Annual OPEB Cost
Contributions
Net OPEB Obligation

$
$

$

$

$

$

34,478
30,953
65,431

$
$

55,676
48,875
104,551

$
$

49,961
51,099
101,060

65,431 $
16,145
(23,342)
58,234 $

104,551 $
18,290
(26,443)
96,398 $

101,060
21,876
(31,628)
91,308

403,631 $
58,234
(4,617)
457,248 $

457,248 $
96,398
(6,736)
546,910 $

546,910
91,308
(10,064)
628,154
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The Port’s OPEB cost, the percentage of OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for 2014, 2015, and 2016 were as follows:
Fiscal Year
Ended
12/31/2014
12/31/2015
12/31/2016

E.

Annual OPEB
Cost
$
$
$

58,234
96,398
91,308

Contribution as a
Percentage of OPEB Cost
7.93%
6.99%
11.02%

Net OPEB
Obligation
$
$
$

457,248
546,910
628,154

Funded Status and Funding Progress

In order to fund the OPEB plan, the Port would have to establish an irrevocable trust, which
means that the Port would no longer have control of the money put into the trust. Even if the Port
left the PEBB program, the Port would not be able to get the money out of the trust. As of
December 31, 2016, the plan was 0% funded.
Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about
future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the
funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information
that will show whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial liability for benefits.
F.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The Port used the alternative measurement method permitted under GASB Statement No. 45. A
single retirement age of 62.4 was assumed for all active members to determine the Actuarial
Accrued Liability and normal cost. Retirement, disablement, termination, and mortality rates
were assumed to follow the PERS 2 rates used in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation report
issued by the Office of the State Actuary. Healthcare costs and trends were determined by
Milliman and used by the Office of the State Actuary in the state-wide PEBB study performed in
2015. The results were based on grouped data with four active groupings and four inactive
groupings. The actuarial cost method used to determine the Actuarial Accrued Liability was
Projected Unit Credit. The Actuarial Accrued Liability and the Net OPEB Obligations are
amortized on an open basis as a level dollar over 30 years. These assumptions are individually
and collectively reasonable for the purposes of this valuation.
NOTE 9 – RISK MANAGEMENT
The Port is a member of Enduris. Chapter 48.62 RCW provides the exclusive source of local
government entity authority to individually or jointly self-insure risks, jointly purchase insurance
or reinsurance, and to contract for risk management, claims, and administrative services. Enduris
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was formed July 10, 1987 pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 48.62 RCW, Chapter 200-100
WAC, and Chapter 39.34 RCW. Two (2) counties and two (2) cities in the State of Washington
joined together by signing an interlocal governmental agreement to fund their self-insured losses
and jointly purchase insurance and administrative services. As of August 31, 2016, there are 524
Enduris members representing a broad array of special purpose districts throughout the state.
Enduris provides property and liability coverage as well as risk management services and other
related administrative services.
Members make an annual contribution to fund Enduris and share in the self-insured retention of
the jointly purchased excess and/or reinsurance coverage. The self-insured retention is:
x
x
x

$1,000,000 deductible on liability loss - the member is responsible for the first $5,000 of
the deductible amount of each claim, while Enduris is responsible for the remaining
$995,000 on a liability loss.
$250,000 deductible on property loss - the member is responsible for the first $5,000 of
the deductible amount of each claim, while Enduris is responsible for the remaining
$245,000 on a property loss.
Enduris is responsible for the $4,000 deductible on boiler and machinery loss.

Enduris acquires reinsurance from unrelated insurance companies on a “per occurrence” basis to
cover all losses over the deductibles as shown on the policy maximum limits. Liability coverage
is for all lines of liability coverage including Public Official’s Liability. The Property coverage is
written on an “all risk”, blanket basis using current Statement of Values. The Property coverage
includes but is not limited to mobile equipment, boiler and machinery, electronic data processing
equipment, business interruption, course of construction and additions, property in transit, fine
arts, cyber and automobile physical damage to insured vehicles. Liability coverage limit is $20
million per occurrence and property coverage limit is $1 billion per occurrence. Enduris offers
crime coverage up to a limit of $1 million per occurrence.
Since Enduris is a cooperative program, there is a joint liability among the participating
members.
The contract requires members to continue membership for a period of not less than one (1) year
and must give notice 60 days before terminating participation. The Master Agreement
(Intergovernmental Contract) is automatically renewed after the initial one (1) full fiscal year
commitment. Even after termination, a member is still responsible for contribution to Enduris for
any unresolved, unreported and in-process claims for the period they were a signatory to the
Master Agreement.
Enduris is fully funded by its member participants. Claims are filed by members with Enduris
and are administered in house.
NOTE 10 – LONG-TERM DEBT
The Port of Edmonds issues general obligation and revenue bonds to finance the acquisition,
purchase, or construction of various projects. Bonded indebtedness was also entered into in 2005
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to advance refund several general obligation bonds. Both general obligation bonds and revenue
bonds are repaid from revenues.
A.

General Obligation Bonds

The general obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:
Purpose

Maturity

Interest Rate

Original Amount 2016 Installment

2017

3.00-4.10%

$

Refund 1997 G.O. Bonds

3,925,000

$

735,000

The annual debt service requirements to maturity of general obligation bonds are as follows:

Year Ending

2005 G.O. & Refunding Bonds

December 31

Principal

2017

Interest

765,000

Total

$

765,000

15,683
$

15,683

The 2005 G.O. and Refunding Bonds were issued at a premium. The Port is decreasing annual
interest expense by amortizing the debt premium over the life of the bond.
B.

Revenue Bonds

The revenue bonds currently outstanding are as follows:
Purpose
Refund of 2006 Special Revenue Bond which was
used to acquire Harbor Square buildings

Maturity
2021

Interest Rate Original Amount 2016 Installment
5.25%

$

7,898,115

$

649,402

The annual debt service requirements to maturity of the 2011 Special Revenue Refunding Bond
are as follows:

Year Ending

2011 Special Rev. Ref. Bonds

December 31

Principal

2017

Total

$

208,129

Interest
$

365,353

2018

219,482

354,000

2019

231,454

342,028

2020

243,128

330,353

2021

3,158,695

238,599

$

4,060,887

$

1,630,332

Page 82

The Port has pledged future Harbor Square revenue and net revenues of the Port to repay
$7,898,115 in Special Revenue Refunding Bonds issued in August 2011. Proceeds from the 2011
bonds provided financing for refunding the 2006 Special Revenue Bond. Proceeds from the 2006
Special Revenue Bond were used to purchase the Harbor Square buildings and leasehold interest
in the Harbor Square Property. The bonds are payable from Harbor Square revenue and net
revenues of the Port, and are payable through 2021. Annual principal and interest payments on
the bonds are expected to require less than 18% of Port net revenues. The total principal and
interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $4,060,887. Principal and interest paid for the
current year were $885,600. Pledged Harbor Square revenues were $1,735,308.
Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
During the year ended December 31, 2016, the following changes occurred in long-term
liabilities:
Beginning
Balance
1/1/2016
Bonds Payable:
G.O. and Refunding Bonds
Revenue & Refunding Bonds
Add Unamortized Amounts:
For bond premiums
Total bonds payable
Employee leave benefits
Other post employment benefits
Net pension liability
Environmental remediation liability
Total Long-Term Liabilities

Additions

$ 1,500,000 $
4,710,289
822
6,211,111
132,061
546,910
1,353,211
612,500
$ 8,855,793

$

Reductions
- $
-

Ending
Balance
12/31/2016

735,000 $
649,402

822
1,385,224
181,006
173,114
91,308
10,064
210,875
483,189 $ 1,568,402

$

765,000
4,060,887
4,825,887
139,953
628,154
1,564,086
612,500
7,770,580

Due
Within
One Year
$ 765,000
208,129

973,129

$ 973,129

NOTE 11 - LEASES
A.

Port as Lessee

As of December 31, 2016, the Port had no material noncancelable contracts where the Port leases
property as a lessee.
B.

Port as Lessor

The Port, as a lessor, enters into operating leases with tenants for the use of land and facilities at
the marina and its Harbor Square business park, under lease terms of 1 year to 30 years plus
lease extensions. In addition, some properties are rented on a month to month basis. Port
procedure is to negotiate all leases at fair market value, considering market conditions, economic
factors, property condition, and location, as well as other factors that may impact negotiating
lease prices.
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The Port currently has approximately 35 noncancelable lease arrangements ranging in monthly
payments between $860 and $27,000 with either fixed increases from one to three percent,
Consumer Price Index rent escalation clauses, or market rate rent escalation clauses.
Approximately 20 of the noncancelable leases include contract terms allowing one to five lease
extensions in 1 to 15 year terms.
The Port’s minimum future lease rental income on noncancelable operating lease terms
remaining in excess of one year are as follows:
Year Ending
December 31
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022-2026
2027-2031
2032-2036
2037-2041
2042-2044
Total

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Minimum
Rental
Income
2,025,872
1,964,920
1,715,536
1,028,926
669,144
1,760,824
1,119,047
652,210
392,549
117,439
11,446,468

The Port’s leased properties involved are in part used by internal Port operations, or in part of a
building with land, and/or parts of a land parcel. Therefore, it is not reasonably determinable to
segregate the value of assets associated with producing minimum rental income from the value
of the assets associated with an entire facility.
NOTE 12 – CONTINGENCIES AND LITIGATION
The Port has recorded in its financial statements all material liabilities, including an estimate for
situations which are not yet resolved but where, based on available information, management
believes that it is probable that the Port will have to make payment. In the opinion of
management, the Port’s insurance policies are adequate to pay all known or pending claims.
The Port participates in a number of federal and state assisted programs. These grants are subject
to audit by the grantors or their representatives. Such audits could result in requests for
reimbursement to grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grants.
Port management believes that such disallowances, if any, will be immaterial.
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NOTE 13 – POLLUTION REMEDIATION OBLIGATIONS
The Port of Edmonds is subject to laws and regulations relating to the protection of the
environment. The Port’s policy is to accrue environmental and cleanup related costs when it is
both probable that a liability has been incurred and when the amount can be reasonably
estimated.
In November 2006, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No.
49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations. The provisions
of this Statement are effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2007. The Port
adopted this standard in 2008.
GASB Statement No. 49 requires disclosure of “obligations to address current or potential
detrimental effects of existing pollution by participating in pollution remediation activities.”
GASB Statement No. 49 identifies five “obligating events” that require a government agency to
disclose future outlays associated with remediation of contaminated sites. Once any of the five
obligating events occurs, the government agency must document the components of expected
pollution remediation outlays that are reasonably estimable. At this time, the Port has determined
that future cleanup costs associated with one site constitute the Port’s pollution remediation
obligations.
A.

Nature and Source of Pollution Remediation Obligations

From 2003 to 2006, the Port of Edmonds was involved in cleaning up a property known as the
Harbor Square property, which was purchased by the Port from the Union Oil Company in 1978.
From 1924 to 1968, portions of the property were used as an oil and gasoline depot and
distribution facility, a railcar cleaning facility, an asphalt batch plant, and heavy-equipment
storage. Several remedial investigations were conducted at the property from 1989 to 2003. In
June 2003, a supplemental site investigation was conducted at the direction of the Department of
Ecology to further define the extent of contamination at the property identified during previous
investigations, to help identify any additional areas of contamination, and to further evaluate any
impacts to groundwater. The Port developed a remediation plan based on that investigation, and
commenced cleanup activities.
The Port’s environmental engineering firm, Landau Associates, prepared a report for the Port of
Edmonds in November 2003 that provided estimates of the cost of remediation activities at the
Port of Edmonds’ Harbor Square complex due to past industrial activities at the site. The
estimated costs presented in the report are for all remediation activities anticipated at the site,
which are described as Phase I through Phase III remediation in the report. Phase I and Phase II
remediation efforts were essentially completed in 2005 and 2006. Phase III remediation remains
to be completed.
B.

Amount of Estimated Liability

The estimated cost of Phase III remediation was a range of $150,000 to $900,000, reflecting the
uncertainty of the extent of contamination under existing structures that could not be readily
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accessed for assessment. Landau Associates estimates the liability to the Port of Edmonds
associated with the future cleanup of known areas of contamination on Port property to be
$175,000 to $1,050,000 (in 2008 dollars). The middle point of this estimated range is $612,500.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board implemented new standards for recording
pollution remediation obligations for financial periods beginning after December 15, 2007. The
Port increased its liability from $175,000 in 2007 to $612,500 in 2008 in accordance with these
standards.
As per GASB Statement No. 49, “Estimates of a pollution remediation liability should be
adjusted when benchmarks are met or when new information indicates changes in estimated
outlays due to, for example, changes in the remediation plan or operating conditions. These
changes may include the type of equipment, facilities, and services that will be used, price
increases or reductions for specific outlay elements such as ongoing monitoring requirements,
changes in technology, and changes in legal or regulatory requirements.”
The Port did not meet any benchmarks or receive new information that indicates changes in
estimated outlays in 2016. Therefore, the Port did not make any adjustments to Environmental
Remediation Liability in 2016.
C.

Methods and Assumptions Used for the Estimate

The majority of the contamination to be addressed in Phase III remediation is located under
existing buildings; some areas of residual contamination (expected to be relatively small) are
located outside building footprints, but underneath paved surfaces. Phase III activities were not
undertaken due to the inaccessibility of the contaminated areas, although the Port has committed
to remediation at such time that the structures at the Harbor Square complex are removed for
future development.
The Port has chosen to use only the best case and worse case for the ranges of potential
outcomes. As the Port does not have a reasonable basis for specifying the probability and amount
of a most likely potential cash flow, it is using only two data points, a range of $175,000 to
$1,050,000.
D.

Potential for Changes

As Phase III remediation may only be completed when the Harbor Square property is
redeveloped, this estimate may be revised due to price increases or reductions, technology, and
applicable laws or regulations.
E.

Estimated Recoveries Reducing the Liability

The Port does not expect to receive any recoveries to reduce this liability.
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NOTE 14 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In January 2017, the 2011 Special Revenue Refunding Bonds were amended to reduce the
interest rates from 5.25% to 2.59%, accelerate the payments so that the bond would mature in
January 2020 instead of September 2021, and alter the monthly payments to eliminate a balloon
payment at maturity. This bond amendment will save the Port approximately $623,000.
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ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE
The State Auditor's Office is established in the state's Constitution and is part of the executive
branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the citizens of Washington and serves
four-year terms.
We work with our audit clients and citizens to achieve our vision of government that works for
citizens, by helping governments work better, cost less, deliver higher value, and earn greater
public trust.
In fulfilling our mission to hold state and local governments accountable for the use of public
resources, we also hold ourselves accountable by continually improving our audit quality and
operational efficiency and developing highly engaged and committed employees.
As an elected agency, the State Auditor's Office has the independence necessary to objectively
perform audits and investigations. Our audits are designed to comply with professional standards
as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state, and local laws.
Our audits look at financial information and compliance with state, federal and local laws on the
part of all local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of
higher education. In addition, we conduct performance audits of state agencies and local
governments as well as fraud, state whistleblower and citizen hotline investigations.
The results of our work are widely distributed through a variety of reports, which are available on
our website and through our free, electronic subscription service.
We take our role as partners in accountability seriously, and provide training and technical
assistance to governments, and have an extensive quality assurance program.

Contact information for the State Auditor’s Office
Public Records requests PublicRecords@sao.wa.gov
Main telephone (360) 902-0370
Toll-free Citizen Hotline (866) 902-3900
Website www.sao.wa.gov

Washington State Auditor’s Office
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